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PART |
Iltem 1. Busines:

World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. (“WWEI$ an integrated media and entertainment comparg .h@ve been involved in the spi
entertainment business for more than 25 yearshane developed World Wrestling Entertainment inte of the most popular brands in glc
entertainment today. We develop unique and creativeent centered around our talent and preseitedrdive and televised events. At
heart of our success are the athletic and ententin skills and appeal of our WWE Superstars andcousistently innovative and multi-
faceted storylines across our three brands, Ravackbown and ECW. Anchored by these brands, we lale ta leverage our content ¢
talent across virtually all media outlets. Our ligad televised events, consumer products, digitadianand feature film outlets prov
significant cross-promotion and marketing oppottiesithat reinforce our brands while effectivelgehing our fans.

“WWE" refers to World Wrestling Entertainmemac. and its subsidiaries, unless the contextmtise requires. References to “we,” “us,”
“our” and the “Company'refer to WWE and its subsidiaries. World Wrestligtertainment and the stylized and highly distirestiVorlc
Wrestling Entertainment scratch logo are two of wademarks. This report also contains other WWd8dmarks and trade names as we
those of other companies. All trademarks and treadees appearing in this report are the properthiaf respective holder



In June 2006, WWE elected to change its fiscal year calendar basis beginning with calendar 20Qi& to the change to a calendar
end, we established an eight month transition pefiom May 1, 2006 through December 31, 2006. Témults from this time period ¢
referred to throughout this report as “2006 traositperiod”, “transition 2006”, “T 2006", or ther&nsition period”.Results have not be
restated to reflect the comparable twelve montlrwdr periods for prior years.

Our operations are centered around the following far business segments:
Live and Televised Entertainment

e Revenues consist principally of ticket sales te Imvents, sales of merchandise at these live evewision rights fees, sales
television advertising and sponsorships, and feesiéwing our pay-per-view and video-on-demandgpamming.

Consumer Products

e Revenues consist principally of the direct saleWWE produced home videos and magazine publishitgrayalties or license fe
related to various WWE themed products such asowj@enes, toys and books.

Digital Media

e Revenues consist principally of advertising salesoor websites, sale of merchandise on our welisiteRigh our WWEShop interr
storefront and sales of various broadband and mabihtent.

WWE Studios (formerly WWE Films)

e Revenues consist of our share of receipts fromdib&ibution of filmed entertainment featuring oBuperstars. We participate
revenues generated by the distribution of the fithreugh all media after the print, advertising ahstribution costs incurred by ¢
distributors have been recouped and the results besn reported to us.

Live and Televised Entertainment
(represents 63%, 65%, 70% and 73% of our net revenes in 2008, 2007, T 2006 and fiscal 2006, respeely
Live Events

Our Raw Superstars travel as one touring show wehitesSmackDown and ECW Superstars travel togethar@mbined tour. This gives
flexibility in scheduling that allows us to play merous domestic and international markets.
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In 2008, we held 242 live events throughout Northekica, entertaining over one million fans at aarage ticket price of $40.98. We h
many of our live events at major arenas acrosscthentry. In addition to providing the content fourotelevision and pay-pesiew
programming, these events provide us with a read-thissessment of the popularity of our storylimescharacters.

In 2008, we held 77 live events internationallygaieing approximately 651,000 fans at an averagettiorice of $78.96. These events v
spread over several successful international tilwesighout Europe, Latin America and Australia.

Live events net revenues were $105.7 million, $98il8on, $52.3 million and $75.0 million, repregamy 20%, 20%, 20% and 19% of tc
net revenues in 2008, 2007, transition 2006 amm@lfiz006, respectively.

Venue Merchandise

Our venue merchandise business consistseo$ate of various WWE-branded products at our divents, such as 3hirts, caps and otf
novelty items, which feature our Superstars andiar logo. Nearly all of these products are desighgdour inhouse creative staff a
manufactured by third parties.

Venue merchandise net revenues were $18.5 miliaA,1 million, $12.1 million and $14.7 million, negsenting 4%, 4%, 5% and 4%
total net revenues in 2008, 2007, transition 2Q@6fascal 2006, respectively.

Television Programmin



Relying on our iftouse production capabilities at our productiorlifgcwe produce four television shows, consistfgs hours of origini
domestic programming each week. Our domestic cabté broadcast programs consist of “Monday Night Ra&wCW”, “ Friday Nigh
SmackDown” and “A.M. Raw.” Starting in January 200& began producing these programs in ldgfinition (HD). The ability to broadc:
our programs in HD quality allows our ‘larger-thlifie: Superstars to be showcased in a new and excitigg Wa generate revenue from
programming through television rights fees and bg tale of cable advertising in Canada. We belignee popularity of our televisic
programming drives the success of our other busggdranslating into increased live event atteoglapay-periew buys and merchand
sales.

Our agreement with NBC Universal includes ‘May Night Raw” and the weekend program “A.M. RatWlonday Night Raw” is a two-
hour primetime program that is broadcast live olPAUetwork and is consistently one of the most watthegularly scheduled programs
cable television. As part of this agreement, Raso alirs in replays on Telemundo and mun2.

ECW: Extreme Championship Wrestlings on the SCI FI Channel on Tuesday nights. EGWhé highest rated program on the SC
Channel.

The two-hour “Friday Night SmackDown” airs the MyNetworkTVin primetime on Fridays and is consistently onehaf highest rate
programs on the network and a top rated show ammalgs 12-17 and males B&-on Friday nights. Before the 2008/2009 televisieasol
“Friday Night SmackDown” aired on the CW Network.

In January 2009, we announced tWANVE Superstars a first run, original program will air exclusiyelon WGN America, Tribur
Broadcasting’s national superstation. The actiockpd WWE Superstars part of a new multiear agreement with WGN America, will
produced by WWE and will be an holong weekly program scheduled to debut in April 208nd will provide WGN America viewers 1
chance to see Superstars and Divas from all thid&Eifanchises in one program.

Internationally, our programming is distributed mmore than 145 countries and 28 different langualfés. continue to expand c
distribution and have secured new television digtion agreements on terrestrial, cable and satedlatforms throughout the Middle E:
Africa, Asia, and South America. We believe ouetidion distribution is key to our internationaksess and use our programming to suj
tours and related live event merchandise salesedsawfurthering our licensing program.

Television rights fee net revenues were $100.7ionill$92.4 million, $58.7 million and $81.5 millipnepresenting 19%, 19%, 22% |
20% of total net revenues in 2008, 2007, transi#006 and fiscal 2006, respectively.

Advertising

We provide sponsorships in the US domestic matketdet the needs of our advertisers. Through thesesorships, we offer advertise
full range of our promotional vehicles, includingtérnet and print advertising, arena signage, praanouncements and pay-paew
sponsorship. In Canada, we sell advertising inppagrams rather than receive a rights fee.
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Advertising and sponsorship net revenues were &ifllion, $5.9 million, $4.5 million and $22.6 mith, representing 1%,1%, 2% and
of total net revenues in 2008, 2007, transition&®80d fiscal 2006, respectively.

Pay-Per-View Programming

WWE pioneered the pay-per-view events busingach of our pay-pariew events typically culminates a storyline or epe direction. W
intensively market and promote the storylines tra&t associated with upcoming pay-pé&w events through our television shows, inte
sites, magazine and affiliate partners.

WWE produced 14 domestic pay-péw programs in 2008 as compared to 15 prograr@29@7. The suggested domestic retail price fc
pay-per-view events in 2008 was $39.95, with theeption ofWrestleManiavhich had a suggested domestic retail price of$&4Consistel
with industry practices, we share the revenues wathle systems and satellite providers such axDifeand pay service fees to INDEMAL
and TVN.

Our international pay-petiew partners include SKY in the United KingdomeRiiere in Germany, SKY Perfect TV! in Japan, SKMi#
in Italy and Main Event in Australia.

Pay-persiew net revenues were $91.4 million, $94.3 mil|i&63.4 million and $94.8 million, representing 1,728%, 20% and 24% of to
net revenues in 2008, 2007, T 2006 and fiscal 26&pectively .

WWE 24/7 Classics On Dema



WWE 24/7 Classics On Demand is a Subscripticdeo On Demand (SVOD) service that offers higtdyed and bedtelling classi
television shows, pay-petew events, specials and original programmingaanonthly subscription fee. Most of this matergldrawn fron
WWE's extensive video library and includes othediag wrestling brands. WWE owns and controls thatent from the vast libraries of st
promotions as WCW, WCCW, ECW and AWA. WWE 24/7 sulirers have access to approximately 40 hours et each month.

WWE 24/7 Classics On Demand is currently distridutéth 14 of the top 15 cable operators in the &bhiGtates, making WWE 2-
available to more than 80 percent of videodmmand enabled subscribers. Major North Americatridutors currently include: Comc
Communications, Cox Communications, Charter Comgatigns, Cablevision, Mediacom, Insight, and VamizBommunications, amo
others.

WWE 24/7 Classics On Demand net revenues were f8li®n in 2008, $4.9 million in 2007, $2.0 milliom transition 2006 and $1
million in fiscal 2006.

Consumer Products
(represents 26%, 24%, 22% and 22% of our net reveres in 2008, 2007, T 2006 and fiscal 2006, respeely
Licensing

We have established a worldwide licensing prograimgiour World Wrestling Entertainment marks andole copyrighted works a
characters on a large variety of retail productsluding toys, video games, apparel and books.€dtly, we have relationships with more t
160 licensees worldwide that provide products &e sit major retailers. To maintain the distincttgle and quality of our intellectual prope
and brand, we retain creative approval over th@ggdepackaging, advertising and promotional mate@&sociated with these products.

Videogames and toys represent important comportdrasr licensing program as they generate substar@venues through our licen
with THQ and Jakks Pacific, Inc. (“Jakksigspectively. We are currently involved in litigatiwith, among others, THQ and Jakks. During
resolution of this litigation we plan to continue tulfill our obligations under these licenses axpect Jakks and THQ to do likew
Additional information regarding this litigation igvailable in Note 11 to Notes to Consolidated MRitial Statements. We have
comprehensive, multi-year licensing agreementcéffe as of January 2010, with Mattel, Inc. as W\ Easter toy licensee covering all glc
territories upon the expiration of our current timgnse with Jakks.

We have book publishing licensing agreements witho & Schuster and Dorling Kindersley, which allos the ability to publish origin
content in a variety of genres, including fictidristories, howto, and biographies and autobiographies. During8208 published four ne
books, including the first biography of Andre thea@, an autobiography of “The Million Dollar MafTed DiBiase, as well éShowdowns Ti
20 Greatest Wrestling Rivalries of the Last Two &ss(a historical book) an@l0 Count Trivia: Events and ChampionshfpsTrivia book).

Music is an integral part of the entertaininerperience surrounding WWE's live events, televisprograms and pay-pegrews. We
compose and record most of our music, including Superstar entrance themes, in our recording stuiaddition to our own compos
music, we license music performed by popular attist

Licensing net revenues, including musigere $60.5 million, $47.1 million, $14.7 million @r$32.2 million, representing 11%, 10%,
and 8% of total net revenues in 2008, 2007, treomsB006 and fiscal 2006, respectively.

Home Videc

In 2008, we released 29 new home video priimhg and shipped approximately 4.1 million DVD &ld-ray units, including catalog titl
released in prior years. More widespread marketimd) merchandising support at major retailers apttnéshment of prior year titles helpec
drive domestic sales. Beginning in November 2006niGs Products, LLC became our exclusive domesditiloutor of home videos. Outsi
the United States, our new releases and cataleg &te distributed through licensees.

Home video net revenues were $58.5 million, $53iliam, $35.5 million and $42.6 million, represemgi 11%, 11%, 13% and 11% of t
net revenues in 2008, 2007, transition 2006 am&fit006, respectively.

Magazine Publishin

WWE Magazine is a global manifestyle publication with native language edisan Spain, Mexico, France, Germany and Greecery
issue is filled with features, photos, exclusiveeimiews and access that fans will not see on igt@v. In the US, WWE Magazine is ranl
“top-5" in retail revenue for the mem'category, averaging more than $1 million in néarss sales every month. More than 4.6 million res
purchase WWE Magazine every month. Our new WWE Kidgazine was launched in April 2008 and will psiblnine issues in 2009.



WWE Kids UK edition launched in November 2008.

Magazine publishing net revenues were $15.4 mill§#6.5 million, $8.5 million and $11.1 million,presenting 3% of total net revenue
2008, 2007, transition 2006 and fiscal 2006.

Digital Media
(represents 7%, 7%, 8% and 5% of our net revenuesi 2008, 2007, T 2006 and fiscal 2006, respectively)
WWE.com

Through our broadband network and sites, WyEerates revenue from the sale of online advegtigcommerce, and the distribution
wireless content. Our primary website, WWE.conraated nearly 15 million monthly unique users waille and generated an average c
million streams per month in 2008, according to @ura, Inc. We utilize the internet to promote dwands, to provide content, to entertain
to market and distribute our products.

Our portfolio of promotional, asdpported and transactional video content is a ohiarchival footage, breaking news stories, orit
programs and live broadcasts. WWE.com updatesfitsmation as events happen on a global basis.

We have continued to build upon our wireless faatdsy developing a mobile content management gsyste we entered into relationst
with several third party partners to produce, diste, bill, and directly sell mobile content. Toopision this new outlet, we produce sev
pieces of made-fomobile video offerings. Domestically, we have ameggnent with AT&T Wireless to provide exclusive temt, includin
videos and ring tones.

WWE.com net revenues were $16.3, $16.2 million3$iillion and $9.7 million, representing 3%, 3%, 3¥d 2% of total net revenue:
2008, 2007, transition 2006 and fiscal 2006, retyely.

WWEShop

WWEShop is our eemmerce storefront. The number of orders processadessentially flat at 329,200 in 2008 as conp&are329,100 i
2007. Category offerings continued to expand ashidsale of exclusive WWEShop packages.

WWEShop net revenues were $18.5 million, $18.6iom|I$13.4 million and $12.1 million, representifigp, 4%, 5% and 3% of total 1
revenues in 2008, 2007, transition 2006 and fi2686, respectively.

WWE Studios (represents 5% and 3% of our net revenes in 2008 and 2007, respectively)

We established WWE Films to explore options in &bnentertainment in order to promote our Superstagscapitalize on our intellecti
property and fan base. In July 2008 WWE Films cleanits name to WWE Studios to better represeribdss on creating a diversified mix
filmed entertainment, including theatrical filmsrett-to-DVD movies, and scripted television movies, seded reality programming. To di
we have released three feature filBee No Evi] The Marineand The CondemnedDuring 2008 production was completed on the fiesafilm
12 Roundsstarring WWE Superstar John Cena, which will beeaséd March 27, 2009 by 20th Century Fox. Durin@82@roductio
commenced on two direct-to-DVD films co-produced an-financed with Fox Home EntertainmeBé&hind Enemy Lines 3: Colomistarring
WWE Superstar Mr. Kennedy arithe Marine 2starring WWE Superstar Ted DiBiase, Jr. As of DeeenB81, 2008, we have approxima
$31.7 million in capitalized feature film produati@ssets. We do not participate in revenues agedogth these film projects until the pi
and advertising costs and distribution expensesriad by our distributors have been recouped aaddhults have been reported back ti
We recorded approximately $24.5 million in film emues in 2008, compared to approximately $16.0aniih 2007.

International

Revenues generated outside of North America wepeoapnately $135.2 million for 2008, $119.3 millidor 2007, $60.4 million in T 20(
and $97.7 million in fiscal 2006. Revenues gener&tem international sources accounted for apprexéty 26% of total revenues generate
2008, 25% in 2007, 23% in T 2006, and 24% in fi2G06.

Creative Development and Production

Headed by our Chairman, Vincent K. McMahon, ouratixe team develops compelling characters and veetinan into dynamic storylin
that combine physical and emotional elements. 8ty are usually played out in the wrestling rargl unfold on our weekly television shc
and on our website, and culminate or change diecturing our pa-pel-view events



Our results are due primarily to the popularityoaf Superstars. We currently have exclusive cotgraith approximately 150 Superst
ranging from developmental contracts to my#iar guaranteed contracts with established Supgrsbur Superstars are highly trained
motivated independent contractors whose compemségitied to the revenue that they help us geneRdpular Superstars include Triple
John Cena, Batista, Shawn Michaels, UndertakeRaydMysterio. We own the rights to substantiallycdlour characters, and we exclusi
license the rights we do not own through agreemwitts our Superstars. We continually seek to idgntiecruit and develop additional tal
for our business. In this regard, we have an agaremt with a wrestling development camp, Florida@pionship Wrestling, to allow nev
identified talent the opportunity to perform fooerds and refine their skills.

Competition

While we believe that we have a loyal fan base,ethiertainment industry is highly competitive andbject to fluctuations in populari
which are not easy to predict. For our live, ted&n, pay-periew and movie audiences, we face competition fppofessional and colle
sports as well as from other forms of live, filmadd televised entertainment and other leisure iieBv We compete with entertainm
companies, professional and college sports leagmes other makers of branded apparel and mercharidiséhe sale of our brand
merchandise. As we continue to expand into thelhighmpetitive digital media market we face incegsompetition from websites offeri
paid and free web-based and wireless content. Mampanies with whom we compete have greater fimhnesources than we do.

Trademarks and Copyrights

Intellectual property is material to all aspectsoof operations, and we expend substantial coste#fiodt in an attempt to maintain ¢
protect our intellectual property and to maintaampliance vis-a-vis other partieisitellectual property. We have a large portfolioredistere
and unregistered trademarks and service marks wigiddand maintain a large catalog of copyrightedkspincluding copyrights in o
television programming, music, photographs, bookagazines and apparel art. A principal focus of effwrts is to protect the intellecti
property relating to our originally created chaeastportrayed by our performers, which encompaBrages, likenesses, names and ¢
identifying indicia of these characters. We alsonoavlarge number of internet website domain nanmekscaperate a network of develog
content-based sites, which facilitate and contgliatthe exploitation of our intellectual propengridwide.
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We vigorously seek to enforce our intellectual gy rights by, among other things, searching thernet to ascertain unauthorized us
our intellectual property, seizing goods that featunauthorized use of our intellectual propertgt a@eking restraining orders and/or dam
in court against individuals or entities infringiogr intellectual property rights. Our failure tortail piracy, infringement or other unauthori
use of our intellectual property rights effectivety our infringement of other@itellectual property rights, could adversely affear operatin
results.

Employees

As of February 2009 we had 564 employees. This dmad excludes our Superstars, who are indeperateritactors. In January 20
WWE announced that it was reducing approximateB6 I its staff across all areas of its global ofierss. Our inhouse production staff
supplemented with contract personnel for our tsiewi production. We believe that our relationshipith our employees are gener:
satisfactory. None of our employees are represdmtedunion.

Regulation
Live Events

In various states in the United States and sonedoijurisdictions, athletic commissions and otiygplicable regulatory agencies requir
to obtain licenses for promoters, medical clearareel/or other permits or licenses for performad/@ permits for events in order for ut
promote and conduct our live events. In the evieat tve fail to comply with the regulations of afarlar jurisdiction, we may be prohibit
from promoting and conducting our live events iattjurisdiction. The inability to present our liegents over an extended period of time «
a number of jurisdictions could lead to a declime¢hie various revenue streams generated from weielients, which could adversely affect
operating results.

Television Programming

The production of television programming by indegemt producers is not directly regulated by the=falor state governments, but
marketplace for television programming in the Udittates and internationally is substantially aéfddoy government regulations applici
to, as well as social and political influences mhevision stations, television networks and catrld satellite television systems and chan
We voluntarily designate the suitability of eachoof television shows using standard industry gatimand all of our programming carries a
rating. A number of governmental and privatetor initiatives relating to the content of megiiagramming have been announced. Chang
governmental policy and privatector perceptions could further restrict our pangicontent and adversely affect our levels of vighip an
operating results



Available Information

Copies of our Annual Reports on Form 10-Kaferly Reports on Form 10-Q, current reports omF8+K, and any amendments to th
reports, are available free of charge on our welaihttp://corporate.wwe.coas soon as reasonably practicable after such seaartiiled witl
the Securities and Exchange Commission. None ofrtfoemation on any of our websites is part of tAisnual Report on Form 1K: Out
Corporate Governance Guidelines, Code of Businesslct and charters of our Audit Committee and GCamsption Committee are a
available on our website. A copy of any of theseuwhents will be mailed to any stockholder withobtuge upon request to us at Wi
Wrestling Entertainment, Inc., 1241 East Main Str&&amford, CT 06902, Attn: Investor Relations Bement.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

There are inherent risks and uncertainties assatiaith our business that could adversely affectaperating performance and finan
condition. Set forth below are descriptions of thdsks and uncertainties that we currently believiee material, but the risks and uncertail
described below are not the only risks and unaarés that could affect our business. See the di&on under Cautionary Statement 1
Purposes of the ‘Safe Harbor’ Provisions of thevdd Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995” itein 7, Managemerg’Discussion ar
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of GgiEms, in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Our failure to maintain or renew key agreements cold adversely affect our ability to distribute televsion and pay-perview
programming which could adversely affect our operaing results.

Our television programming is distributed Hrpadcast and cable networks, and our pay-per-pmgramming is distributed by pay-per-
view providers. Because our revenues are generalieectly and indirectly, from the distribution ajur televised and pay-perew
programming, any failure to maintain or renew agements with these distributors or the failure hef tlistributors to continue to prov
services to us could adversely affect our operatasglts. We regularly engage in negotiations irgato substantial agreements covering
distribution of our cable, broadcast and/or pay~pew television by carriers located in the Unitettes or abroad.

Our failure to continue to develop creative and erdrtaining programs and events would likely lead ta decline in the popularity o
our brand of entertainment and could adversely affet our operating results.

The creation, marketing and distribution of ¢ive and televised entertainment, including pay-perview events, is at the core of «
business and is critical to our ability to genenseenues across our media platforms and produtgteuOur failure to continue to cre
popular live events and televised programming wdildely lead to a decline in our television ratingsd attendance at our live events, w
would adversely affect our operating results.

Our failure to retain or continue to recruit key performers could lead to a decline in the appeal ofwr storylines and the popularity
of our brand of entertainment, which could adverse} affect our operating results.

Our success depends, in large part, upon our\ahilitecruit, train and retain athletic performenso have the physical presence, ac
ability and charisma to portray characters in o €vents and televised programming. We cannatraggu that we will be able to continue
identify, train and retain these performers in finteire. Additionally, we cannot assure you thatwit be able to retain our current perform
during the terms of their contracts or when theimtcacts expire. Our failure to attract and reteg performers, or a serious or untimely in
to, or the death of, or unexpected or premature twsretirement for any reason of any of our kesfggeners, could lead to a decline in
appeal of our storylines and the popularity of brand of entertainment, which could adversely aféer operating results.

The loss of the creative services of Vincent K. Mcihon could adversely affect our ability to create ppular characters and creative
storylines, which could adversely affect our operag results.

For the foreseeable future, we will depend heamilythe vision and services of Vincent K. McMahanatdition to serving as Chairmar
our Board of Directors, Mr. McMahon leads the cireateam that develops the storylines and the chersfor our televised programming .
live events. Mr. McMahon is also an important membkour cast of performers. The loss of Mr. McMahdue to unexpected retireme
disability or death or other unexpected terminafmmany reason could have a material adverse taffeour ability to create popular charac
and creative storylines, which could adverselyd@féair operating results.

A continued decline in general economic conditionand disruption of financial markets could adverselyaffect our business.

Our operations are affected by general ecanconditions, which affect consumexdisposable income. The demand for entertainmer
leisure activities tends to be highly sensitivahe level of consumerslisposable income. A continued decline in genecahemic condition
could reduce the level of discretionary income that fans and potential fans have to spend on iverdnd televised entertainment
consumer products, which could adversely affectreuenues. Volatility and disruption of financiabrikets could limit our clients’, licensees’
and distributor’ ability to obtain adequate financing to maintairegtions and result in a decrease in sales volhatecbuld have a negat



impact on our business, financial condition andiltssof operations. Our television partners derxenues from our programming by the
of advertising, and we sell advertising directly oar website and in our magazines. As widely regmhrthe advertising market has b
impacted by the weak economic environment. Contiragdtness in the market could adversely affectreuenues or the financial viability
our distributors.

Our accounts receivable represent a significant poion of our current assets and relate principally b a limited number of
distributors, increasing our exposure to bad debtsnd potentially impacting our results of operations

A substantial portion of our accounts reckigaare from distributors of our pay-peiew, television, home video and magazine prod
Adverse changes in general economic conditionscantinued contraction in global credit markets dopitecipitate liquidity problems ama
our key distributors. This could increase our expedo losses from bad debts and have a matenarsel effect on our business, finan
condition and results of operations.

A decline in the popularity of our brand of sportsentertainment, including as a result of changes ithe social and political climate
could adversely affect our business.

Our operations are affected by consumer tastegarsitainment trends, which are unpredictable aibjest to change and may be affe:
by changes in the social and political climate. Programming is created to evoke a passionate msgpiwom our fans. A change in our fans’
tastes or a material change in the perceptionsiobosiness partners, including our distributord Brensees, whether as a result of the s
and political climate or otherwise, could adversaffgct our operating results.

Changes in the regulatory atmosphere and related prate sector initiatives could adversely affect oubusiness.

While the production of television programming bbglépendent producers is not directly regulatechbyféderal or state governments in
United States, the marketplace for television progning in the United States is affected signifibahy government regulations applicable
as well as social and political influences on,\i®n stations, television networks and cable saigtllite television systems and channels
voluntarily designate the suitability of each ofr ¢elevision shows using standard industry ratiragel all of our television currently has a
rating. Domestic and foreign governmental and peisctor initiatives relating to the content of megiiagramming are announced from t
to time. Changes in these governmental policies@nditesector perceptions could further restrict our pangrcontent and adversely aff
our levels of viewership and operating results.

The markets in which we operate are highly competite, rapidly changing and increasingly fragmentedand we may not be able t
compete effectively, especially against competitonsith greater financial resources or marketplace pesence, which could adverse
affect our operating results.

For our live, television and pay-pdew audiences, we face competition from professi@md college sports, as well as from other foof
live and televised entertainment and other leiswt@ities in a rapidly changing and increasinghginented marketplace. The manner in w
audio/video content is distributed and viewed iastantly changing, and while we attempt to distiebaur content across all platforms,
failure to continue to do so effectively could abady affect our operating results. For the sal@wf consumer products, we compete
entertainment companies, professional and collpgesleagues and other makers of branded appadeharchandise. Many of the compa
with whom we compete have greater financial resesithan we do.

Our failure to compete effectively could result ansignificant loss of viewers, venues, distributicmannels or performers and fe
entertainment and advertising dollars spent orfaumn of sports entertainment, any of which couldexdely affect our operating results.

We face uncertainties associated with internationainarkets.

Our production of live events overseas subject® tise risks involved in foreign travel and locagjulations, including regulations requir
us to obtain visas for our performers. In addititrese live events and the licensing of our telemisand consumer products in internatic
markets expose us to some degree of currencyAlskaternational operations are subject to po#tiinstability inherent in varying degrees
those markets. These risks could adversely affactoperating results and impair our ability to pueur business strategy as it relate
international markets.

We may be prohibited from promoting and conductingour live events if we do not comply with applicableegulations.

In the United States and some foreign jurisdicticatbletic commissions and other applicable regwjatigencies require us to obt
licenses for promoters, medical clearances andtar@ermits or licenses for performers and/or psrifior events in order for us to prom
and conduct our live events. In the event that aikté comply with the regulations of a particujarisdiction, we may be prohibited frc
promoting and conducting our live events in thatsgliction. The inability to present our live everdver an extended period of time or



number of jurisdictions could lead to a declindghe various revenue streams generated from ouelreats, which could adversely affect
operating results.

Because we depend upon our intellectual property ghts, our inability to protect those rights or our infringement of others’
intellectual property rights could adversely affectour business.

Our inability to protect our large portfolio of ttamarks, service marks, copyrighted material aratatiers, trade names and o
intellectual property rights from piracy, countetifeg or other unauthorized use could negativelig@tfour business. Intellectual propert
material to all aspects of our operations, and ¥perd substantial cost and effort in an attemph&intain and protect our intellectual prop:
and to maintain compliance vis-a-vis other partietllectual property. We have a large portfolioredistered and unregistered trademarks
service marks worldwide and maintain a large cgtadd copyrighted works, including copyrights to diglevision programming, mus
photographs, books, magazines and apparel artin&ipal focus of our efforts is to protect the ifgetual property relating to our origina
created characters portrayed by our performerssiwihcompasses images, likenesses, names anddethéfying indicia of these characte
We also own a large number of Internet website domames and operate a network of developed, cohesed sites, which facilitate ¢
contribute to the exploitation of our intellectymbperty worldwide.

We vigorously seek to enforce our intellectual gy rights by, among other things, searching therhet to ascertain unauthorized us
our intellectual property, seizing at our live eteegoods that feature unauthorized use of ourl@tielal property and seeking restraining or
and/or damages in court against individuals ortiestiinfringing our intellectual property rightsuffailure to curtail piracy, infringement
other unauthorized use of our intellectual propeigits effectively, or our infringement of otherstellectual property rights, could advers
affect our operating results.

We could incur substantial liabilities if pending material litigation is resolved unfavorably.

We are currently a party to civil litigation, which concluded adversely to our interests, couldeasely affect our operating results. In
ordinary course of business we become subjectriougacomplaints and litigation matters. The outeoofi litigation is inherently difficult t
assess and quantify, and the defense against Riofs ©r actions can be costly. Any adverse judgrsemificantly in excess of our insurai
coverage could materially and adversely affectfmancial condition or results of operations.

We could incur substantial liability in the event d accidents or injuries occurring during our physically demanding events.

We hold numerous live events each year. This sdbesiposes our performers and our employees whiaodved in the production
those events to the risk of travel and performaetsted accidents, the consequences of which mapedully covered by insurance. 1
physical nature of our events exposes our perfartethe risk of serious injury or death. Althoumir performers, as independent contrac
are responsible for maintaining their own healisallility and life insurance, we satfsure medical costs for our performers for injariba
they incur while performing. We also sdatfsure a substantial portion of any other liabitityat we could incur relating to such injuries. hilay
to us resulting from any death or serious injurgtained by one of our performers while performitagthe extent not covered by our insura
could adversely affect our business, financial o and operating results.

We will continue to face the risk of impairment chages relating to our feature films if the demand fo one or more of our films doe:
not meet our expectations.

We have substantial capitalized film costs. Theoanting for our film business in accordance witmemlly accepted accounti
principles entails significant judgment calls agipected future revenues from films. If expectebnue for one or more of our films does
materialize because viewem&mand does not meet expectations, we would logesynon the film, taking an impairment charge andimg
down the capitalized costs of the film.

Through his beneficial ownership of a substantial rajority of our Class B common stock, Mr. McMahon ca exercise control ove
our affairs, and his interests may conflict with tte holders of our Class A common stock.

We have Class A common stock and Class B commat.site holders of Class A common stock generalyetrights identical to holde
of Class B common stock, except that holders o€k common stock are entitled to one vote perestzard holders of Class B common s
are entitled to ten votes per share. Holders dfi btatsses of common stock generally will vote thgets a single class on all matters pres:
to stockholders for their vote or approval, exa@pbtherwise required by applicable Delaware law.
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A substantial majority of the issued and outstagdihares of Class B common stock is owned benlidig Vincent K. McMahon. Mr
McMahon controls approximately 88% of the votingygo of the issued and outstanding shares of oumtmmstock. Through his benefic
ownership of a substantial majority of our Class@nmon stock, Mr. McMahon effectively can exerctsmtrol over our affairs, and |
interest could conflict with the holders of our 8aA common stock. In addition, the voting poweMsf McMahon through his ownership
our Class B common stock could discourage othens finitiating potential mergers, takeovers or otbleange of control transactions. A
result, the market price of our Class A commonlstmuld decline.

We could face a variety of risks if we expand intmew and complementary businesses.

We have entered into new or complementary busiseissthe past and may do so again in the futurekdRof expansion may inclu
among other risks: potential diversion of managehseattention and other resources, including avadlalalsh, from our existing busines
unanticipated liabilities or contingencies; redueagnings due to increased amortization, impairnobatges and other costs; competition 1
other companies with more experience in such basew and possible additional regulatory requirgésnamd compliance costs.

A substantial number of shares are eligible for sal by Mr. McMahon, and the sale of those shares calilower our stock price.

Although the Company is not aware of any such plaaks of substantial amounts of our Class B comstock by Mr. McMahon ¢
family trusts over whose stock he has power toatispor the perception that such sales could oatay, lower the prevailing market price
our Class A common stock.

Our Class A common stock has a relatively small puiz “float.”

Historically, as a result of our relatively smalllgic float, our Class A common stock has been legsd than the common stock
companies with broader public ownership, and thditrg prices for our Class A common stock have bmeere volatile than generally may
the case for more widelyeld common stock. Among other things, trading oélatively small volume of our Class A common &totay hav
a greater impact on the trading price of our CRagemmon stock than would be the case if our pulbdiat were larger.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen
None.

Item 2. Properties

We have executive offices, television and imuscording studios, pogtroduction operations and warehouses at locatinnsrinea
Stamford, Connecticut. We also have offices in Neéark, London, Toronto and Los Angeles, and haveemdlg established regior
international offices in Sydney, Australia; Tokylapan; and Shanghai, China. We own the buildingghich our executive and administrat
offices, our television and music recording studiad our production operations are located. Weslspace for our sales offices, WWE Stu
office, and other facilities.

Our principal properties consist of the following:

Square Expiration Date
Facility Location Feet Owned/Leased of Lease
Executive offices Stamford, CT 114,30( Owned —
Production studit Stamford, CT 39,00( Owned —
Ring/Photo studit Stamford, CT 5,60( Leasec May 31, 2012
WWE Studios office Los Angeles, C/ 5,30( Leasec June 30, 201
Sales offices Various 16,40( Leasec Various through April 9, 201

All of the facilities listed above are utilized dur Live and Televised Entertainment, Consumer &etdand Digital Media segments, v
the exception of the WWE Studios office in Los Alege which focuses on our WWE Studios segment.

We have recently upgraded our television produdiaility to produce high definition broadcasting.order to allow for future growth v
have performed the initial planning for an expansdb our television production facility. Howeveramagement has elected to delay the st
any construction project until the economic envin@mt improves.
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Item 3. Legal Proceeding



See Note 11 to Notes to Consolidated Finargt@iements, which is included elsewhere in thisnFb0-K.

Item 4. Submission of matters to a vote of SecuHtglders

None.
PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrar's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters arsslier Purchases of Equity Securities

Our Class A common stock trades on the NewkYtock Exchange under the symbol “WWHHere is no established public trac
market for our Class B common stock.

The following table sets forth the high and the Isale prices for the shares of Class A common séscleported by the New York St
Exchange and the dividends paid on shares of @lasal Class B common stock for the periods inditate

Fiscal Year 2007

Quarter Ended March 31 June 30 September 3( December 3. Full Year
Class A common stock price per she
High $16.6¢ $186( $ 16.6¢ $ 158/ $18.6(
Low $15.5C $155¢ $ 134¢ $ 13.98 $13.4¢
Class A and Class B dividends paid
per share $ 024 $02£ 3 024 $ 02¢ $ 0.9¢

Fiscal Year 200¢&

Quarter Ended March 31 June 30 September 3( December 3. Full Year
Class A common stock price per she
High $19.4¢ $198¢ $ 17.1: $ 15.9¢ $19.8¢
Low $13.3t $1497 $ 1394/ $ 8.7¢ $ 8.7¢
Class A dividends paid per share $ 03¢ $03¢€ $ 03€ % 03¢ $ 1.4«
Class B dividends paid per share $ 024 $02£ % 024 $ 02¢ $ 0.9¢

There were 10,501 holders of record of Clasemmon stock and five holders of record of ClBaommon stock on February 6, 2009.

On February 13, 2009, the Board of Directors audedra regular quarterly cash dividend of $0.36gb&re on all Class A common shi
not held by the McMahon family. Shareholders oforedcon March 13, 2009 will be paid on or about M5, 2009. Beginning with t
quarterly dividend payment in March 2008, VincentNécMahon, Linda E. McMahon and members of theimiadiate family, as well as tru
for members of their family, have waived their resjive rights to any portion of the quarterly calfidend in excess of the first $0.24
share. This waiver applies to all Class A and CB.ssommon stock beneficially owned by any of thetipa for a three year period end
February 2011, subject to earlier termination i@ évent of the death of Vincent K. McMahon, the origy stockholder. This waiver does
apply to any dividends other than regular quartedgh dividends that may be declared by the BoaRirectors in the future or to shares
Class A or Class B common stock following a transfethe shares by any of these parties to anylateet third parties.

Our quarterly cash dividend is based on a numbé&aatébrs, including our liquidity and historicaldprojected cash flows. The declara
and payment of dividends is subject to the disoretif the Board of Directors. Any determinationt@she payment of dividends will depend
general economic and business conditions, ouregfi@aplan, our financial results, contractual aegkl restrictions and such other factors a
Board of Directors may consider to be relevant.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table sets forth certain informatiasith respect to securities authorized for issuamtger equity compensation plans a
December 31, 2008.

Number of securities Number of securities remaining
to be issued upon Weighted-average available forfiure issuance



Plan Category

Equity compensation plans approved

security holders :
1999 Long Term Incentive Ple
Stock options
Restricted stock units
2007 Omnibus Incentive Pl:
Performance stock units

Equity compensation plans not approvec

security holders
Total

Item 6. Selected Financial Dat

exercise of outstandin

options, warrants

exercise price of
outstanding options,

under equity compensation
plans (exclding securities

and rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a))
(@) (b) (c)
645,38¢ $ 14.0C -
401,99( N/A -
783,57¢ N/A 3,823,69
N/A N/A N/A
1,830,95 3,823,69!

The following table sets forth our selected finahciata for the twelve months ended December 318 20id December 31, 2007, the €
month transition period ended December 31, 2006eauth of the three fiscal years in the period ensled 30, 2006. The selected financ
data as of December 31, 2008, December 31, 200D acember 31, 2006 and for the years ended Dege3tth@008 and December 31, 2(
the eight month transition period ended December2®D6 and the fiscal year ended April 30, 2006ehbeen derived from the audi
consolidated financial statements included elsewfrethis Annual Report. The selected financiahdes of April 30, 2006, April 30, 2005 ¢
April 30, 2004 and for the fiscal years ended AR@l, 2005 and April 30, 2004 have been derived fmm audited consolidated financ
statements, which are not included in this Annuap®tt. You should read the selected financial dateonjunction with our consolidat
financial statements and related notes and thenr#tion set forth under “ManagemenDiscussion and Analysis of Financial Condition

Results of Operations” contained elsewhere inAmisual Report.

Financial Highlights:
Net revenues
Operating income

Income from continuing operations

Net income (1)

Earnings per share from continuing

operations, diluted
Earnings per share, diluted
Dividends paid per share

Cash and short-term investments

Total assets
Total debt
Total stockholders’ equity

For the periods ended December 31,

For the periods ended April 30,

2008 2007 T 2006 2006 2005 2004
$ 526.f $ 4857 $ 262.¢ $400.1 $366.. $374.¢
$ 70z $ 684 $ 392 $70E $50: $73¢€
$ 454 $ 521 $ 31€ $47.C $37.& $49.¢
$ 454 $ 521 $ 31€ $47.C $391 $48.:
$ 06z $ 07z $ 04 $067 $054 $0.72
$ 06z $ 072z $ 04/ $067 $056 $0.7C
$ 144 $ 09 $ 072 $07z $03€ $0.1¢
$ 1772 $ 266.« $ 248.2 $280.¢ $258.1 $273.:

As of December 31, As of April 30,
2008 2007 T 2006 2006 2005 2004

$ 4294 $ 470.1 $ 453.
$ 4¢ $ 58 $ 6.7
$ 360.C $ 383.« $ 385.7

$479.¢ $441.¢ $454.%
$ 72 $ 8C $ 87
$396.2 $375.E $353.]

(1) Included in our net income was the operating resaft our discontinued operationshe Worldand the XFL, and their respect
estimated shutdown costs, which totaled approxin&t4 and ($1.4) during fiscal 2005 and fiscaD20respectively
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Item 7. Managemer's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionnal Results of Operations

You should read the following discussion in conjiimt with the audited consolidated financial statets and related notes inclus

elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Background

The following analysis outlines all material adti®s contained within each of our four segments.



Live and Televised Entertainment

e Revenues consist principally of ticket sales te Imvents, sales of merchandise at these live evewision rights fees, sales
television advertising and sponsorships, and feesiéwing our pay-per-view and video-on-demandgpamming.

Consumer Products

e Revenues consist principally of the direct sale¥WWE produced home videos and magazine publishitrayalties or license fe
related to various WWE themed products such asowj@enes, toys and books.

Digital Media

e Revenues consist principally of advertising salesoor websites, sale of merchandise on our welisiteRigh our WWEShop interr
storefront and sales of various broadband and mabihtent.

WWE Studios (formerly WWE Films)

e Revenues consist of our share of receipts fromdik&ibution of filmed entertainment featuring oBuperstars. We participate
revenues generated under the distribution of fhesfthrough all media after the print and advertisand distribution costs incurred
our distributors have been recouped and the relsalts been reported to us.

We provide updated information on the keyelrs of our business including live event attenéargay-perview buys, home vide
shipments, website traffic, and online merchandiasées on a monthly basis on our corporate webdtig//lsorporate.wwe.com. Su
information is not incorporated herein by reference

Results of Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2008 compared to Year End&kcember 31, 2007 (dollars in millions)

Summary
Net Revenue 2008 2007
Live and Televised Entertainment $331.F $316.¢
Consumer Products 135.% 118.1
Digital Media 34.¢ 34.¢
WWE Studios 24.F 16.C
Total $526.f  $485.7
14

Cost of Revenues 2008 2007
Live and Televised Entertainme $221.2 $202.¢
Consumer Produc 52.1 45.€
Digital Media 22.¢ 21.:¢
WWE Studios 15.€ 29.1
Total $311.6 $298.¢
Profit contribution margit 41% 38%
Operating Income 2008 2007
Live and Televised Entertainme $ 924 $100.z
Consumer Produc 76.5 68.¢€
Digital Media 6.2 6.2
WWE Studios 7.2 (14.¢)
Corporate (112.0 (91.9)
Total operating incom $ 70 ¢ 68.4
Income from continuing operatiol $ 454 § 521




Our Live and Televised Entertainment segment betefrom strong performances both at internati@mal North American live events
well as higher television rights fees in both dotiteand international markets. Our licensing basaenue accounted for approximately ¢
of our Consumer Products segment in 2008 as compgard0% in 2007, primarily due to amounts earnggart of a license with our bc
publisher. Digital Media revenues were essentialtighanged from the prior year. Revenues related/V8E Studios accounted for $2
million, reflecting a full year of revenue, compdneith the $16.0 million recorded in the prior yedrich revenues began in the third quart:
2007.

Revenues derived from international sources reptede26% and 25% of total net revenues in 2008280, respectively.
Live and Televised Entertainment

The following chart provides performance resultd kay drivers for our Live and Televised Entertagmhsegment:

Revenueslive and Televised Entertainmen 2008 2007
Live events (dollars in millions $ 1057 $ 99.2
Number of North American events 242 238
Average North American attendance 6,40( 6,60(
Average North American ticket price (dollars) $ 409 $ 4047
Number of international events 77 75
Average international attendance 8,50( 7,70(
Average international ticket price (dollars) $ 789 $ 79.6(
Venue merchandise (dollars in millior $ 185 % 19.1
Domestic per capita spending (dollars) $ 103 $ 10.7¢
Pay-per-view (dollars in millions’ $ 914 % 94.2
Number of pay-per-view events 14 15
Number of buys of pay-per-views 5,034,40! 5,200,80!
Average revenue per buy (dollars) $ 17.7¢ $  17.4:
Domestic retail price, excluding/restleManigdollars) $ 399 $ 39.9¢
Domestic retail pricéVrestleManigdollars) $ 5495 $ 49.9t
Television rights fees (dollars in million
Domestic $ 63 $ 59.¢
International $ 372 % 32.¢
Television advertising (dollars in million $ 74 $ 5.¢
WWE 24/7 Classics on Demand (dollars in millio $ 6.3 % 4.¢
Other (dollars in millions $ 15 $ 0.6
Total (dollars in millions) $ 331F $ 316.8
Ratings:
Average weekly household ratings for Raw 3.4 3.7
Average weekly household ratings for SmackDown 24 2.1
Average weekly household ratings for ECW 1.3 1kt
15
Cost of Revenued ive and Televised Entertainmen 2008 2007
Live events $74: $ 71z
Venue merchandise 11.2 11.4
Pay-per-view 49.¢ 43.€
Television 75.¢ 66.5
Television advertising 0.8 0.8
WWE 24/7 Classics on Demand 1.8 2.1
Other 7.5 7.1
Total $221.2  $202.¢
Profit contribution margin 33% 36%

Live events revenue reflects approximately $64.0ioni for North American events and $41.7 millioor finternational events in 2008
compared to $61.9 million for North American eveaisl $37.4 million for international events in 2000ring 2008, average attendance a



North American events was approximately 6,400 whilerage attendance at our international eventsappsoximately 8,500. During 20(
North American average attendance was approximété§0 and average international attendance waoxippately 7,700Live events prof
contribution margin was 30% in 2008 as compare2Bs in 2007.

Venue merchandise revenues in 2008 were impactdatiebglight decline in North American average atterce and per capita spenc
dollars. Venue merchandise profit contribution nirasgas 39% in 2008 as compared to 40% in 2007.

Pay-periew revenue reflects approximately 5.0 million bug 2008 as compared to 5.2 million buys in 20072008, our premier annt
pay-per-view eveniWrestleMania XXIV, generated approximately 1.1 million buys as camga&o 1.2 million buys foWrestleMania XXIII.
Domestic buys, which carry a higher price per bigpresented 66% of total buys in 2008 and 2007. Fdeperview profit contributiol
margin was 46% in 2008 as compared to 54% in 2@fl&cting additional spending in guest talent gaypmotion and consumer advertisini
support ofWrestleMania XXIV

The increase in domestic and international telewmigights fees reflects our new agreement with MylekTV as well as contractt
increases in several territories. The increaselevision cost of revenues reflects higher productind staging costs incurred related tc
broadcasting in high definition.

Advertising revenues include sales of advertisingoiur Canadian television programs and sponsorsiiggertising cost of revenu
reflects costs associated with the increased spsimparelated activities in the current year.

WWE 24/7 Classics On Demand, our subscrigh@sed video-odemand service, generated higher revenues bashe expanded numt
of subscribers from the prior year. WWE 24/7 ClesDn Demand is currently offered in approxima@o of video-ordemand enabls
homes in the United States.

Consumer Products

The following chart provides performance resultd kay drivers for our Consumer Products segment:

RevenuesConsumer Products 2008 2007
Licensing $ 60.E $ 47.1
Magazine publishing $ 154 % 16.5
Net units sold 4,702,80! 4,858,40!
Home video $ 58 % 53.7
Gross DVD units 4,053,71! 4,034,16
Other $ 1.3 % 0.8
Total $ 1357 $ 118.1
16
Cost of Revenue-Consumer Product: 2008 2007
Licensing $13.€  $11.€
Magazine publishing $13.2  $11.4
Home video $24.2 $21.€
Other $1C $07
Total $52.1 $45¢€
Profit contribution margin 62% 61%

Licensing revenues in 2008 reflect approximatel®.81million in the toy category, $25.3 million ih& videogame category and §
million related to apparel and novelties. In 2008venues reflected approximately $14.3 million fve toy category, $18.3 million in t
videogame category and $9.4 million related to eglpand novelties. 2008 reflects revenues fromvideogame title “SmackDown vs. R
2008” released in seven platforms versus four platfororstfie prior release in this series. Licensing nexws related to books wi
approximately $6.4 million higher in the currentayeprimarily due to amounts earned as part ofenke with our book publisher. Licens
revenue is dependent upon the release schedulediigis and is affected by the timing of when lg®s report results to us. Licensing co
revenue consists primarily of talent royalties agegnt commissions paid to our licensing agents.litkasing profit contribution margin w
78% in 2008 as compared to 75% in 2007.

Magazine publishing revenues declined indheent year due to lower newsstand sell-througésras we published twensyx issues i
2008 as compared to twenty-one issues in 2007 phil 2008, we began publishing a new magazinedtMA&VE Kidsa bi-monthly publicatio
for 6-14 year old WWE fans, which generated approximas@® million in revenue. The magazine publishimgfip contribution margin we
14% in 2008 as compared to 31% in 2007 as thetpnafigin was adversely impacted by the lowel-thru rates and higher publication co:



Home video revenue reflects the sale of approxitypatd million gross DVD units in 2008 as compatedt.0 million gross units in 20C
Included in the successful titles released in 28@8 WrestleMania XXIV, which shipped approximately 326,000 gross ufiite increase
home video costs is due to higher distribution faed advertising. The home video profit contribotmoargin was 59% in 2008 as compare
60% in 2007, reflecting the aforementioned costdases.

Digital Media

The following chart provides performance resultsl &ey drivers for our Digital Media segment (dadlan millions, except avera
revenues per order):

RevenuesDigital Media 2008 2007
WWE.com $ 16.2 $ 16.2
WWEShop $ 18t §$ 18.€
Total $ 346 $ 34.€
Average revenues per order (dollars) $54.77 $54.9
Cost of Revenue-Digital Media 2008 2007
WWE.com $ 88 §$ 7.€
WWEShop $ 141 $ 137
Total $22¢ §$ 218
Profit contribution margin 34% 39%

WWE.com revenue in 2008 reflects additionabvadvertising and wireless content. Wetsed advertising accounted for approximi
$10.6 million in revenues as compared to $10.4ionilln 2007. The WWE.com profit contribution margimas 46% in 2008 as compared £
in 2007, reflecting higher costs associated with wentent.

WWEShop revenue in 2008 reflects approximately 32@,customer orders, essentially flat to the pyear. The average customer sp
$54.77 per order, was essentially flat to the pyrar as well. The WWEShop profit contribution margas 24% in 2008 as compared to :
in the 2007, partially reflecting an increase in@enial costs.
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WWE Studios

The following chart provides performance resultsl &ey drivers for our WWE Studios segment (dollarsmillions, except averal
revenues per order):

RevenuesWWE Studios 2008 2007
WWE Studios $24.5  $16.C
Total $24.5  $16.C
Cost of RevenuedVWE Studios 2008 2007
WWE Studios $15.€  $29.1
Total $15.6  $29.1
Profit contribution margin 36% (82%)

WWE participates in revenues associated with dor firojects when the distribution and advertisingts incurred by our distributors hi
been recouped and the results have been reportesl uring 2008, revenues from our WWE Studiosreag was $24.5 million, relating
our three feature film¥he Marine, See No Evil and The CondemnBdring 2008 we expensed $15.6 million of featuha foroduction asse
including a $1.9 million film asset impairment charrelated to the performance®de No Eviand approximately $0.9 million of developm
costs for abandoned projects.

During 2007 we recorded $16.0 million in revenud arpensed approximately $29.1 million of featulm foroduction assets, including
$15.7 million film asset impairment charge relatedhe performance of our theatrical releads Condemne@nd approximately $0.4 millic
of development costs for abandoned projects.

Expenses



The following chart reflects the amounts of certsignificant overhead items (dollars in millions):

Selling, General & Administrative Expense 2008 2007
Staff related $ 552 $50.:
Legal, accounting and other professional 16.€ 14.C
Stock compensation 8.C 7.8
Advertising and promotion 11.€ 5.4
Bad debt 2.5 0.1
All other 37.4 31.t
Total SG&A $131.2  $109.]
SG&A as a percentage of net revenues 25% 23%

Staff related expenses increased in the curremtdgmin part to the continued expansion of ourtBidviedia content staff and advertis
sales force and additional personnel related targarnational expansion. The increase in legalpanting and other professional fees refle
additional litigation based expense based on cafeitp. Stock compensation expense includes amatitin of restricted stock unit 8
performance stock unit grants issued to employ@ekvertising and promotion costs in 2008 include5$&illion associated with o
McMahon’s Million Dollar Mania™ brand awareness campaignV®/was reimbursed $2.0 million, net of tax, for firize money associat
with this event by the Chairman of WWE, Vincent McMahon. Additional advertising and promotion cosfsapproximately $1.2 millic
were also incurred in support of our new internadimffices. Bad debt expense in the current yefiecsts an increase for specifically identit
accounts due to difficulties encountered in outemtion efforts.

2008 2007
Depreciation and amortization $13.1  $9.2

The increase in depreciation and amortization expegflects the initial depreciation charges asgediwith the assets purchased for
implementation of high definition broadcasting.

2008 2007
Investment income $5.¢ $9.1
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The decline in investment income reflectsdomvestment balances.
2008 2007
Interest expense $04 $06€
2008 2007
Other (expense) income, net $(6.4) $(0.5)

Other expense, net includes a markatarket adjustment for the revaluation of warrargglhin licensees and realized losses on fo
currency transactions.

Provision for Income Taxes 2008 2007
Provision $23.¢  $24.c
Effective tax rate 35% 32%

The increase primarily represents tax benefitstedldo previously unrecognized tax benefits in ghier period, and less tax exer
investment income in the current period

Twelve Month Year Ended December 31, 2007 compared Eight Month Transition Period Ended December 312006 (dollars ir
millions)

Summary

Net Revenues 2007 T 2006



Live and Televised Entertainment
Consumer Products

Digital Media

WWE Studios

Total

Cost of Revenues

Live and Televised Entertainment
Consumer Products

Digital Media

WWE Studios

Total

Profit contribution margin

Operating Income
Live and Televised Entertainment

Consumer Products

Digital Media

WWE Studios

Corporate

Total operating income

Income from continuing operations
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118.1 59.2
34.¢ 20.7

. $114.¢
45.¢ 28.7
21.c 13t
29.1

2007 T 2006
$100.; $ 57.C
68.6  26.C
6.3 3.8
(14.9 (1.
(9L9 (479
$684 $39.
$521 $3L¢€

Our Live and Televised Entertainment segment begtefrom strong performances both at internati@mal North American live events
we achieved total average attendance of 6,800 07 28 compared to 5,300 in the eight month tramsiperiod. Our licensing based reve
accounted for approximately 40% of our Consumed®cts segment in 2007 as compared to 25% of segmesrnues in the transition peri
reflecting higher toy and apparel based revenughdtild be noted that the 2006 transition periadndit reflect “holiday seasoritensing sale
which are recorded as the results are reported to the first calendar quarter. In addition, owgazine publishing business continued to g
reflecting our increased circulation. Digital Med&venues for web based advertising and wirelesduats accounted for $16.2 million in 2(
as compared to $7.3 million in the eight month $idon period. In 2007 we recorded our first revenvelated to our features film releases,
total of $16.0 million has been recorded for olm§i The MarineandSee No Evil

Revenues derived from international sources reptede25% and 23% of total net revenues in 2007TaRd06, respectively.

Live and Televised Entertainment

The following chart provides performance resultd kay drivers for our Live and Televised Entertagmhsegment:

Revenue-Live and Televised Entertainment
Live events (dollars in millions)

Number of North American events

Average North American attendance

Average North American ticket price (dollars)

Number of international events

Average international attendance

Average international ticket price (dollars)
Venue merchandise (dollars in millions)

Domestic per capita spending (dollars)
Pay-per-view (dollars in millions)

Number of pay-per-view events

Number of buys from pay-per-view events

Average revenue per buy (dollars)

Domestic retail price, excluding/restleManigdollars)
WWE 24/7 Classics On Demand (dollars in millions)

2007 T 2006
$ 99.: $ 52.c
23¢ 21z
6,60( 4,86(
$ 4047 $ 35.5¢
75 34
7,70C 8,29(
$ 79.6C $ 68.41
$ 191 $ 12.1
$ 107t $ 10.8¢
$ 94: % 53.¢
15 1C
5,200,80! 3,287,30!
$ 17.4:  $ 15.4¢
$ 399t $ 39.9¢
$ 4¢ 3 2.C



Advertising (dollars in millions) $ 5¢ $ 4.5

Sponsorship advertising $ 1.2 % 0.t
Television rights fees (dollars in millions)

Domestic $ 59.e $ 38.(

International $ 32¢& % 20.7
Other (dollars in millions) $ 0.¢ -
Total (dollars in millions) $ 3166 $  183.(
Ratings:

Average weekly household ratings for Raw 3.7 3.8

Average weekly household ratings for SmackDown 7 24

Average weekly household ratings for ECW 1kt 1.¢
Cost of Revenued ive and Televised Entertainmen 2007 T 2006
Live events $ 71z $ 40.¢
Venue merchandise 11.4 8.1
Pay-per-view 43.€ 19.c
WWE 24/7 Classics on Demand 2.1 -
Advertising 0.¢ 0.2
Television 66.5 40.4
Other 7.1 6.3
Total $ 202.t  $ 114.¢
Profit contribution margin 36% 37%

20

Live events revenue reflects approximately $61.Bioni for North American events and $37.4 millioor finternational events in 2007
compared to $36.6 million for North American eveatsd $15.7 million for international events in thight month 2006 transition perir
During 2007, average attendance at our North Araarievents was approximately 6,600 while averagmd#ince at our international eve
was 7,700. During the 2006 transition period, N&therican average attendance was approximately0gi@ average international attend:
was 8,300. No stand-alone Extreme Championship trgq“ECW") branded events were produced in 2007. During th@6 2fansitio
period, we produced 38 ECW events that were hekirialler venues and consequently generated lowsndgince and revenues per evel
compared to ouRawand SmackDowrbrands. Beginning in 2007ECW'slive events were combined with oBmackDowrbrand. Live event
profit contribution margin was 28% in 2007 as conapato 22% in the 2006 transition period.

Venue merchandise revenues in 2007 were positivghacted by the increase in North American avel@tgndance. Per capita spent
dollars for venue sales were essentially flat. \emerchandise profit contribution margin was 4092007 as compared to 33% in the €
month transition period, reflecting lower cost afes from the expiration of a consulting servicgieament and reduced material costs.

Pay-periew revenue reflects approximately 5.2 million bup 2007 as compared to 3.3 million buys in th@&€@ansition period. Tt
average number of buys reported for the fifteemesv/éhat occurred in 2007 was 347,000 as compar&d@,000 buys for the ten events
occurred in the 2006 transition. In 2007, our peannual pay-per-view evenlyrestleMania XXIIl, generated approximately 1.2 mill
buys.WrestleMania XXlbccurred in April 2006 and is therefore not incldde the results of the 2006 transition period. [2stic buys, whic
carry a higher price per buy, represented 66%taf tuys during 2007 as compared to 61% of totgshn the 2006 transition period. The pay-
perview profit contribution margin was 54% in the twelmonth 2007 period as compared to 64% in thet eiginth transition period. T
2007 profit margin reflected additional spendingay-per-view promotion and consumer advertisingupport olWrestleMania

Advertising revenues included the sales of adviagi®n our Canadian television programs as wellva@sous domestic sponsors
packages. Advertising cost of revenues reflectatiscassociated with the increased sponsorshigdetativities in the current year.

The increase in domestic television rights fees prvasarily due to the rights fees received for &@W programming in 2007. The incre
in television cost of revenues is primarily duethie production of television shows while on toutermationally, as we produced six of th
televised international shows in 2007 as compavda/d shows during the transition period.

Consumer Products

The following chart provides performance resultd kay drivers for our Consumer Products segment:



Revenue-Consumer Products 2007 T 2006

Licensing $ 471 % 14.7
Magazine publishing $ 16.5 $ 8.5
Net units sold 4,858,40! 2,793,60!
Home video $ 53.7 $ 35.t
Gross DVD units 4,034,16 3,283,80!
Other $ 0.8 $ 0.5
Total $ 118.1 $ 59.2
Cost of Revenue-Consumer Products 2007 T 2006
Licensing $ 11 $ 3.8
Magazine publishing $ 11.4 6.8
Home video $ 21.€ 17.¢
Other $ 0.7 0.2
Total $ 45€ $ 28.7
Profit contribution margin 61% 52%
21

Licensing revenues in 2007 reflect approximately.$1million in the toy category, $18.3 million ih& videogame category and §
million related to apparel and novelties. 2007 eetitd revenues from the videogame titl&rhackDown vs. Raw 2007&leased in fol
platforms versus two platforms for the prior rekedas this series. The success of our apparel pmognathe United States, South Africa,
United Kingdom, and Australia helped to generatpraximately $6.1 million in 2007. In the 2006 trédithn period, revenues refleci
approximately $5.0 million in the toy category, $2nillion in the videogame category and $3.3 millicelated to apparel and novelt
Licensing revenue was dependent upon the reledsalsie of products and was affected by the timihg/teen licensees report results to
Licensing cost of revenue consisted primarily déna royalties and agent commissions paid to ocgnising agents. The licensing pr
contribution margin was 75% in 2007 as compareth in the 2006 transition period.

In July 2006, we began publishing a new megatitted WWE Magazinghat replaced our two former magazinBsw and SmackDowi
Including our ‘special’ magazine titles that areblished periodically during the year, we publishegnty-one issues in 2007 as compare
sixteen issues in the 2006 transition period. Tl@azine publishing profit contribution margin wak¥@in 2007 as compared to 20% in
2006 transition periodThe profit contribution in the 2006 transition metiwas impacted by additional editorial and conteogts associat
with the creation of the neWWWE Magazine.

Home video revenue reflects the sale of approxilya® million gross DVD units in 2007 as compated3.3 million gross units in tl
2006 transition period. Included in the successfigs released in 2007 wa&8restleMania XXIIl, which shipped approximately 367,000 g
units. The increase in home video costs is duehéoincreased volume of home video units shippethé2007. The home video pr
contribution margin was 60% in 2007 as compareaDi in the 2006 transition period, reflecting imyed distribution and production costs.

Digital Media

The following chart provides performance resultsl &ey drivers for our Digital Media segment (dadlan millions, except avera
revenues per order:

RevenuesDigital Media 2007 T 2006
WWE.com $162 $ 7.2
WWEShop $18€ $ 13/
Total $ 34 $ 207
Average revenues per order (dollars) $54.9¢ $ 53.2¢
Cost of Revenuedigital Media 2007 T 2006
WWE.com $ 7€ $ 42
WWEShop $ 137 9.2
Total $21.: $ 13t
Profit contribution margin 3% 35%

WWE.com revenue in 2007 reflects additionabvadvertising and wireless content. Wetsed advertising accounted for approximi
$10.4 million in revenues as compared to $5.5 amiliin the 2006 transition period. 2007 also inctidpproximately $4.3 million in wirele



based revenues, primarily driven by our deal with@A Wireless to provide exclusive WWE content, inding videos and ring tones. 1
WWE.com profit contribution margin was 53% in 2085 compared 41% in the 2006 transition period.

WWEShop revenue in 2007 reflects approximately B2®,customer orders as compared to 244,000 custorders in the 2006 eic
month transition period. The sale of exclusive WWE&S packages and an increase in the variety ofustedavailable on WWESh
contributed to the increase in average customerndsper order. The WWEShop profit contribution margias 26% in 2007 as compare:
35% in the 2006 transition period.

WWE Studios

During 2007, revenues from our WWE Studios segmane $16.0 million. WWE participates in revenuesoagated with our film projec
when the distribution and advertising costs inaditsg our distributors have been recouped and thdteehave been reported to us. The rev
recorded in 2007 relates to our feature filfilne Marine and See No EviNo revenues had been recorded in the 2006 timmgieriod.
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In 2007, we expensed approximately $29.1 milliorfeafture film production assets. Included in thisoant was a $15.7 million film as:
impairment charge related to the performance ofApnil 2007 theatrical releas@he Condemnedwhich only achieved approximately $
million in gross domestic box office receipts. Gaature film production asset balance was expeirsgutoportion with the recognition
revenue. During 2007 we expensed $13.0 millioneatdre film production assets due to the revencerded relating tdhe Marineand Set
No Evil , for which we expensed $8.5 million and $4.5 milli respectively. Additionally, we expensed appmagely $0.4 million c
development costs for abandoned projects.

Expenses

The following chart reflects the amounts of certsigmificant overhead items (dollars in millions):

Selling, General & Administrative Expense 2007 T 200€
Staff related $ 50.2  $29.¢
Legal, accounting and other professional 14.C 6.1
Stock compensation 7.8 4.8
Advertising and promotion 5.4 3.4
Bad debt 0.1 (1.6
All other 31.t 18.¢
Total SG&A $109.1  $61.C
SG&A as a percentage of net revenues 23% 3%

Staff related expenses increased due in part tedhénued expansion of our Digital Media contetatffsand advertising sales force. -
increase in legal, accounting and other professife®s primarily reflected costs associated with Balent Wellness Program, which provi
testing and monitoring of various health relategbarfor the Superstars. Stock compensation expe2897 included amortization of restric
stock unit and performance stock unit grants isdoesimployees. Bad debt expense in the transitsiog included the reversal of previot
reserved accounts for which we subsequently reedver

2007 T 2006
Depreciation and amortization $ 93 $5.€

Depreciation expense increased due to the addificapital projects.

2007 T 200€

Investment income $91 $64
2007 T 200€
Interest expense $0€ $04

2007 T 200€
Other (expense) income, net $(0.5) $0.¢

Provision for Income Taxes 2007 T 200¢€




Provision $24.2 $14.F
Effective tax rate 32% 31%

The 2007 effective tax rate is consistent with 206 Transition period’s rate due to high levelsafexempt interest, the contint
increased tax benefits from domestic productioiviiets and the impact of the reversal of liabd&iestablished for previously unrecognize«
positions.
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Eight Month Transition Period Ended December 31, 206 compared to Twelve Month Fiscal Year Ended April30, 2006 (dollars il
millions)

Summary

Net Revenues T 2006 2006
Live and Televised Entertainment M W
Consumer Products 59.Z 86.4
Digital Media 20.7 22.¢
WWE Studios — —
Total $262.C  $400.1
Cost of Revenues T 2006 2006
Live and Televised Entertainment $114.¢  $178.¢
Consumer Products 28.7 34.4
Digital Media 13.t 14.2
WWE Studios — —
Total $157.1  $227.C
Profit contribution margin 4% 43%
Operating Income: T 2006 2006
Live and Televised Entertainment $ 57.C $ 93.¢
Consumer Products 26.¢ 46.4
Digital Media 3.8 2.8
WWE Studios (1.2 .3
Corporate 4749 (7119
Total operating income $39.2 $ 70t
Income from continuing operations $31e $47.C

Our eight month 2006 transition period results wpositively impacted by several factors. In our dignd Televised Entertainm
segment, our live events reflected strong North Aca@ attendance and corresponding sales of medid®at these events. In our Const
Products segment, our home video business contittugdrpass previous shipment records as the nuaili2v¥Ds shipped in the eight mot
transition period exceeded shipments for the ehtisdve month fiscal 2006 period. These positivitdes were offset, in part, by the absenc
$13.7 million of domestic cable advertising salesour Live and Televised Entertainment segment, tdueur agreement with the U:
Network.

Revenues derived from international sources reptede23% and 24% of total net revenues in the 280&ition period and fiscal 20(
respectively.
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Live and Televised Entertainment

The following chart provides performance resultd kay drivers for our Live and Televised Entertamhsegment:



RevenuesLive and Televised Entertainment T 2006 2006

Live events (dollars in millions) $ 52: % 75.C
Number of North American events 212 24¢
Average North American attendance 4,86( 4,99(
Average North American ticket price (dollars $ 355 $ 37.3¢
Number of international events 34 52
Average international attendance 8,29( 9,16(
Average international ticket price (dollars) $ 68.41 $ 69.1¢

Venue merchandise (dollars in millions) $ 121 % 14
Domestic per capita spending (dollars) $ 10.8¢ $ 10.57

Pay-per-view (dollars in millions) $ 534 % 94.¢
Number of pay-per-view events 11 16
Number of buys from pay-per-view events 3,287,30! 6,241,101
Average revenue per buy (dollars) $ 15.4¢ $ 14.9¢
Domestic retail price, excludiMgrestleManig(dollars) $ 39.9t 3 34.9¢

Advertising (dollars in millions) $ 45 % 22.¢
Sponsorship advertising (dollars in millipns $ 0E $ 2.8

Television rights fees (dollars in millions)

Domestic $ 38.C % 53.C
International $ 207 % 28.t

Other (dollars in millions) $ 2C % 2.2

Total (dollars in millions) $ 183.C 3 290.¢

Ratings
Average weekly household ratings for Raw 3.6 4.C
Average weekly household ratings for Smackbo 24 2.8
Average weekly household ratings for ECW 1.6 -

Cost of Revenued.ive and Televised Entertainment T 2006 2006

Live events $ 40 $ 56.¢

Venue merchandise 8.1 10.€

Pay-per-view g8 42.2

Advertising (0.7 6.8

Television 40.4 53.¢

Other 6.2 8.3

Total $ 114¢ % 178.¢
Profit contribution margin 37% 3%%

Live events revenue reflects approximately $36.6ianifor North American events and $15.7 millioor finternational events in the 2(
transition period as compared to $46.7 million Korth American events and $28.3 for internationaras in fiscal 2006. During the 2(
transition period, average attendance at our NArtterican events was approximately 4,900 while ayerattendance at our internatic
events was 8,300. This compares to fiscal 2006H\N@Merican average attendance of approximately®ad@l average international attend:
of 9,200. We produced 38 Extreme Championship Wings{'ECW") branded events in the transition period which hadwerage attendar
of 1,100 and an average ticket price of approxitge#25.00. ECW events were held in smaller venukkRvgenerated lower attendance
revenues per event as compared to Raw and SmackDowrbrands.Excluding our ECW events, North American averagenatance we
approximately 5,700 in the transition period, drd&s increase from fiscal 2006. The live eventsipoaitribution margin was 22% in the ei
month transition period as compared to 24% in telve month fiscal 2006 period. This decline infiiroontribution was due, in part, to 1
costs associated with the production of the ECWhesvim the transition period.

Venue merchandise revenues in transition 2006 weséively impacted by the increase in North Amaniaverage attendance as the
capita spending dollars for venue sales were camdigvith fiscal 2006. The venue merchandise prdfittribution margin was 33% in the ei
month transition period as compared to 28% in thelte month fiscal 2006 period. This increase iofiprmargin reflected a reduction
building rental costs in the 2006 transition period
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Pay-periew revenue reflects approximately 3.3 million buy the 2006 transition period as compared ton@IRon buys in fiscal 200t
The domestic retail price of our pay-peew events was increased from $34.95 to $39.9%1in 2006, representing our first increase in t
price in more than four years. The average numbdugs reported for the 11 events that occurrethe12006 transition period and the
events that occurred in fiscal 2006 were 300,000 225,000, respectively. This decline in the numblebuys was offset, in part, by
increased domestic retail price. International buysich carry a lower price per buy, represente® 28 total buys during the transition per
as compared to 37% of total buys in fiscal 2006 Phy-perview profit contribution margin was 64% in the eighonth transition period
compared to 55% in the twelve month fiscal 2006qakrThe fiscal 2006 period included an investmienglobal marketing campaigns
support of our pay-per-view programming which cansntly reduced the profit margin.

Advertising revenues in the 2006 transition periodluded sales of advertising on our Canadian iglew programs and vario
sponsorship packages that totaled approximately dlion. Under the terms of our domestic cablgtridbution agreement with USA Netwao
which began in October 2005, we no longer sellatigipate in any domestic cable advertising. Therdase in advertising cost of rever
reflects the absence of costs associated witmgallbomestic cable advertising in the transitioriquer

Domestic television rights fees in the 2006 traositperiod reflect payments received for our ECWigoam on the SCI FI Channel t
were not included in fiscal 2006. Internationalhtig fees for the 2006 transition period are coestswith rights fees received in fiscal 2C
The television profit contribution margin was 31#&the eight month transition period as compare8gs in fiscal 2006. This reduction is d
in part, to an overall increase in the costs iredito produce televised events, including additidit@ct costs for the production of our wee
ECW television program.

Consumer Products

The following chart provides performance resultd kay drivers for our Consumer Products segment:

RevenuesConsumer Products T 2006 2006
Licensing $ 147 $ 32.2
Magazine publishing $ 8L $ 11.1
Net units sold 2,793,60! 4,096,70!
Home video $ 35 $ 42.¢€
Gross DVD units 3,283,80! 2,883,20!
Other $ 0E $ 0.E
Total $ 502 $ 86.4
Cost of RevenuesConsumer Products T 2006 2006
Licensing $ 3 $ 8.
Magazine publishing 6.8 6.8
Home video 17.¢ 18.€
Other 0.3 0.4
Total $ 287 $ 34.4
Profit contribution margin 52% 60%

Licensing revenues in the 2006 transition perioitece approximately $5.0 million in the toy categp$2.9 million in the videogan
category and $3.3 million related to novelties apgparel. In fiscal 2006, revenues reflected appnatgly $8.5 million in the toy catego
$14.5 million in the videogame category and $4.8ioni related to novelties and appar¥ideogame revenue is dependent upon the re
schedule of new games and licensees reportingtsesulus. Fiscal 2006 reflects revenues from twe tides released as compared tc
revenues reported for new releases in the trangit@iod. Revenues from our videogame release 06 2@&as reported in 2007. Licensing «
of revenue consists primarily of talent royaltiesl agent commissions paid to our licensing agéits.licensing profit contribution margin w
74% in both the eight month 2006 transition peaod the twelve month fiscal 2006 period.

In July 2006, we began publishing a new megatitted WWE Magazinghat replaced our two former magazinBsw and SmackDowi
Including magazine special issues, we publishesixissues in the 2006 transition period as coeapr thirtytwo issues in fiscal 2006. T
magazine publishing profit contribution margin w2% in the eight month transition period as comgpaoe38% in the twelve month fisi
2006 period. Thelecline in the profit contribution margin refleaar increased editorial and content costs assaltiaih producing our ne
WWE Magazine

Home video revenue reflects the sale of approxip@&®& million gross DVD units in the 2006 transiti period as compared to 2.9 mill
gross units in fiscal 2006. Included in the suchgstles released in the 2006 transition periodswVrestleMania XXII, which shippe
approximately 425,000 gross units, representingargest selling DVD release in our history. Thergase in home video costs is primarily
to the increased volume of home video sales irntréngsition period, reflecting higher duplicationdagistribution fees. The home video pr
contribution margin was 50% in the 2006 transifp@miod as compared to 56% in fiscal 2006, reflgctirdecline in the s+through percentay



in the transition period.
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Digital Media

The following chart provides performance resultsl &ey drivers for our Digital Media segment (dadlan millions, except avera
revenues per order):

RevenuesDigital Media T 2006 2006
WWE.com $ 73 $ 9.7
WWEShop $ 13.C $ 121
Average revenues per order (dollars) $53.2¢ $53.4%
Other $ 04 $ 11
Total $ 207 $22.¢
Cost of RevenuedDigital Media T200€ 2006
WWE.com $43 $52
WWEShop 8.5
Other 0.7 .
Total $13.E $14.C
Profit contribution margin 35% 38%

WWE.com revenue in the 2006 transition period mfleapproximately $5.5 million in advertising reues as compared to $7.3 millior
fiscal 2006. Revenues for other internet basedatjpss in the transition period, including webcastpay-perview events, subscription bas
content and wireless content were $1.8 million @sgared to $2.4 million in fiscal 2006. The WWE.cpnofit contribution margin was 41
in the 2006 transition period as compared to 46%soal 2006. The reduction in the profit margintte transition period reflects higher con
based expenses.

WWEShop revenue in the 2006 transition period otflepproximately 244,000 customer orders as coadpir approximately 226,0
orders received in the twelve month period of fi2206. The sale of exclusive WWEShop packagesaanihcrease in the category offeri
available on WWEShop contributed to the increasthinnumber of orderd'he WWEShop profit contribution margin was 35% lire 2001
transition period as compared to 36% in fiscal 2006

WWE Studios

During the eight month 2006 transition period weeased two feature filmssee No Eviland The Marine,to theaters in widespre
distribution. See No Evilwas released domestically in theaters in May 208& en DVD in November 2006The Marinewas release
domestically in theaters in October 2006 and on DWMDJanuary 2007. During the 2006 transition pemasl incurred approximately $1t
million in capitalized production costs for ourrthifeature film,The Condemnegwhich was released in April 2007. As of Decem®&y 200I
we had recorded approximately $53.6 million in talped feature film production costs. We do natipgate in any revenues associated
these film projects until the print and advertisoasts incurred by our distributors have been rpediwand the results have been reported-
Accordingly, no revenues had been recorded in @86 2ransition period.

Expenses

The following chart reflects the amounts of certsignificant overhead items (dollars in millions):

Selling, General & Administrative Expenses T 2006 2006
Stalff related $29.¢ $44.7
Legal, accounting and other professional 6.1 10.<
Stock compensation 4.8 4.7
Advertising and promotion 3.4 5.2
Bad debt (1.6 0.5
All other 184  25.¢
Total SG&A $61.C $91.¢

SG&A as a percentage of net revenues 23% 23%
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Legal and accounting fees were reduced in theitramgeriod based on the number of active caséisigation and a reduction in the ¢
of Sarbane®xley compliance. The fiscal 2006 amount of legad ather professional expenses included a $2.1omibienefit for net positi
legal settlements. Bad debt expense in the trangiteriod reflects the reversal of previously reedraccounts for which we expect to recover.

Depreciation and amortization $ 5.€ $10.F

Depreciation and amortization expense declinechasatmount of capitalized property, plant and eqeipihand film libraries that beca
fully depreciated and amortized continued to inseea

T 2006 2006
Investment income $ 64 $74

Investment income in the transition periock@ased based on higher short term interest ratedecreases in realized investment losses.

T 2006 2006
Interest expense $04 $0.€

T 2006 2006
Other income, net $0.9 $0.€
Provision for Income Taxes T 200€ 2006
Provision $14.5  $30.¢
Effective tax rate 31% 40%

The transition period effective tax rate dsvér than historical rates due to increased taxa@tenterestincreased tax benefits frc
domestic production activities and the favorablilement of income tax examinations. In additidme effective tax rate for fiscal 2006 v
higher than historical rates primarily due to readi capital losses and an increase in state aatties.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash flows provided by operating activities wer€.83million and $98.2 million for the years endedcember 31, 2008 and Decembel
2007, respectively, while cash flows provided bemgting activities were $22.3 and $67.3 million fioe 2006 transition period and year er
April 30, 2006, respectively. Cash flows provideg dperating activities vary, in part, due to theaitig of our productions and the rele
amortization of feature films. Cash flows used festure film production were $25.5 million, $1.8llion, $17.5 million and $7.3 million fc
2008, 2007, the 2006 transition period and theafigear ended April 30, 2006, respectively. Thénested cash to be used in 2009 for
production costs is expected to be $10.0 to $12Ibom depending on the number and type of filnojpcts selected. Working capi
consisting of current assets less current liabgitwas $221.7 million, $276.1 million and $255.@iom at December 31, 2008, December
2007 and December 31, 2006, respectively.

Net cash flows provided by investing activities eé21.7 million in 2008 and $13.0 million in the(0 Cash flows used in invest
activities for the 2006 transition period were $6#illion. Cash flows provided by investing actigg for fiscal year 2006 were $84.9 milli
As of February 6, 2009, we had approximately $80ilfon of investment securities invested in auntiate securities (“ARS"and municipe
bonds.

Our investment policy is designed to preserve ahpibhd minimize interest rate, credit and marksk.rin February 2008, we startec
experience difficulty in selling our ARS due to riple failures of the auction mechanism that presgidiquidity to these investments. All of «
ARS are collateralized by student loan portfolsshstantially all of which are guaranteed by thététhStates Government. We anticipate
the securities for which the auctions have failéil @ntinue to accrue interest and pay interesémwtue; todate, none of the ARS in which
are invested have failed to make an interest paymbkan due. Our ARS will continue to be auctionedrg 35 days until the auctions succt
the issuer redeems the securities or they mathee qiated maturities of the securities are grethtem 20 years). As we maintain a str
liquidity position, we currently believe that wevagathe ability to hold our ARS until one of the efmentioned remedies occur.
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As of December 31, 2008, we recorded a negativestidgnt to the fair value of our investment in ABSapproximately $2.6 milliol
which is reflected as part of accumulated other mminensive income in our Consolidated StatementStofickholders’ Equity ant
Comprehensive Income. We do not believe that tirenfiarket adjustment is other-th&mporary at this time due to the high underl
creditworthiness of the issuer (including the bagkof the loans included in the collateral packagehe United States Government) and
current intent to hold the ARS until the illiquiditn the ARS market is resolved. The fair valuegh® ARS was estimated through discou
cash flow models, which consider, among other thitige timing of expected future successful austiaollateralization of underlying secu
investments and the risk of default by the iss\Wée. will continue to assess the carrying value af ARS on each reporting date, based ol
facts and circumstances surrounding our liquidégds and developments in the ARS markets.

Capital expenditures for fixed asset projects vagrproximately $26.3 million, $18.2 million, $5.1 Ificin and $9.4 million in 2008, 20C
transition 2006 and fiscal 2006, respectively. @dpéexpenditures in 2008 and 2007 reflected appragly $9.5 million and $10.
respectively, related to our transition to highidligbn broadcasting. Also in 2008 we acquired acphof land adjacent to our television stt
for approximately $3.0 million and incurred approzitely $3.9 million in costs related to the plamnai our media center expansion. Howe
management has elected to delay the start of amstrewtion for this expansion until the economigissnment improves. Fiscal 2006 incluc
approximately $4.6 million for the purchase of laadjacent to our television studio. Capital expamds in 2009 are expected to be bety
$6.0 million and $9.0 million, reflecting additidrtalevision equipment and capital building improents for our television production studio.

Cash flows used in financing activities for 200802, the 2006 transition period and fiscal yeareehdpril 30, 2006, were $74.1, $6
million, $46.8 million and $33.5 million, respeatily. In February 2008, the Board of Directors autterl an increase in the quarterly ¢
dividend to $0.36 per share on all Class A comntares not held by the McMahon family. The quartelilidend on all Class B shares, f
by members of the McMahon family and their respectrusts, will remain at $0.24 per share as treyehwaived quarterly cash dividend
excess of $0.24 per share for a period of threesyéa 2008, we paid four quarterly cash dividenti$0.36 on all Class A common shares,
$0.24 on all Class B common shares, for an aggeegyabunt of $81.4 million. In 2007, we paid fourcerly cash dividends of $0.24 on
Class A and Class B common shares, for an aggregateint of $68.7 million. In the 2006 transitiorripd, we paid three quarterly c:
dividends, at $0.24 per share on all Class A arad<B common shares, for an aggregate amount dd $fllion. In fiscal 2006, we paid fo
quarterly cash dividends, including two dividendsiaate of $0.12 per share and two dividends &4bper share on all Class A and Cla:
common shares, for an aggregate amount of $50lbbmiAssuming the continuation of these respectiash quarterly dividend rates of $C
per share and $0.24 per share and the same staudrsvip, the estimated amount of dividends to bd fmx the upcoming fiscal year
approximately $82.0 million.

We believe that cash generated from operatom from existing cash and shtatm investments will be sufficient to meet ourtcaged
over the next twelve months for working capitapital expenditures, feature film production and plagment of dividends.

Contractual Obligations

In addition to londerm debt, we have entered into various other ectgrunder which we are required to make guarantegcthent:
including:

e Various operating leases for office space and eneip.

e Employment contract with Vincent K. McMahon, whigims through October 2010, with annual renewaleetifeer if notterminated b
us or Mr. McMahon, as well as a talent contrachviitr. McMahon that is coterminous with his employrheontract. Mr. McMaho
waives all of his compensation under theses agreesmnexcept for a salary of $850,000 per year.

e Employment contract with Linda E. McMahon, whicmsuhrough October 2010, with annual renewals #ftaeif notterminated by
or Mrs. McMahon. Mrs. McMahon waives all of her quansation except for a salary of $500,000 per year.

e Other employment contracts, which are generallyofae-to three-year terms.

e Service contracts with certain of our independemtiactors, including our talent, which are gerlgrfar one-to four-year terms.
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Our aggregate minimum payment obligations undesdheontracts as of December 31, 2008, assumingcdhénued waiver (
compensation by Mr. and Mrs. McMahon (except fer éinnual salaries of $850,000 and $500,000, réspbgtnoted above), were as follows:

Payments due by period
($ in millions)

After

2009 2010t0201 2012t0201 2013  Total
Long-term debt (including interest therec $13 $ 27 $ 17 $ - $57

Operating lease 2.2 2.8 15 0.¢ 7.4
Talent, employment agreements and other commitn 18.1 24.C 81 11.C 61.2




Total commitment: $21€ $ 295 $ 11.2 $11.¢ $74.:¢

Seasonality

Our operating results are not materially etffe by seasonal factors; however, our premier teW¥restleMania, occurs late in our fir
guarter or early in our second quarter. In addjtimvenues from our licensing and direct sale afsamer products, including our catalc
magazines and internet sites, may vary from petgopleriod depending on the volume and extent @nking agreements and marketing
promotion programs entered into during any paréicpkriod of time, as well as the commercial susodshe media exposure of our charac
and brand. The timing of these events as well azdmtinued introduction of new product offeringsl aevenue generating outlets can and
cause fluctuation in quarterly revenues and easiing

Inflation

During 2008, 2007, transition period 2006 and fi&06, inflation has not had a material effectoan business.
Application of Critical Accounting Policies
Accounting Policie!

We believe the following are the critical accougtipolicies used in the preparation of our finansi@tements, as well as the signific
judgments and estimates affecting the applicatichese policies

. Revenue Recognition
Pay-per-view programming

Revenues from our pay-péew programming are recorded when the event edadnd are based upon our initial estimate of theber o
buys achieved. This initial estimate is based atlipinary buy information received from our pay—wew distributors. Final reconciliation
the pay-periew buys occurs within one year and any subseqadjtstments to the buys are recognized in theogarew information
received. As of December 31, 2008, our payypew accounts receivable was $11.9 million. If initial estimate is incorrect, it can resul
significant adjustments to revenues in subsequegatsy

Licensing:

Licensing revenues are recognized upon receipbtiée by the individual licensees as to license féee. If we receive licensing advan
such payments are deferred and recognized as inasrearned.

Home video:

Revenues from the sales of home video titles arerded at the later of the date of delivery by distributor to wholesalers, or the date
these products are made widely available for sgleetailers, net of an allowance for estimatedmetuThe allowance for estimated returr
based on historical information and current industends. As of December 31, 2008, our home vid#arns allowance was $6.3 million. If
do not accurately predict returns, we may havealjosia revenues in future periods.
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Magazine publishing:

Publishing newsstand revenues are recorded wh@peshiby our distributor to wholesalers/retailerst of an allowance for estima
returns. We estimate the allowance for newsstatne based upon our review of historical retutesaand the expected performanc
our current titles in relation to prior issue retuates. As of December 31, 2008, our newsstandn®tallowance was $6.3 million. If we
not accurately predict returns, we may have tosidgvenues in future periods.

Feature films:

We capitalize costs of production and acquisitiortluding production overhead, as feature film prcttbn assets. These costs
amortized to direct operating expenses in accoelavith Statement of Position 00Atcounting by Producers or Distributors of Film3he
costs for an individual film are amortized and fmdpation and residual costs are accrued in th@gton that the current perialrevenue
bear to manageme's estimates of the ultimate revenue from explaitgtexhibition or sale of such film over a periast to exceed ten ye:



from the date of initial release. Management regylieeviews and revises, when necessary, its utémevenue and cost estimates, which
result in a change in the rate of amortization ilwh fcosts and/or writelown of all or a portion of the unamortized costghe film to its
estimated fair value. No assurance can be givenuhf@vorable changes to revenue and cost estimédtesot occur, which may result
significant writedowns affecting our results of operations and fai@ncondition. In 2008 and 2007 we recorded anaimmpent charge of $1
million and $15.7 million, respectively, related The Condemnednd See No Evil As of December 31, 2008, we have approximately.?
million in capitalized film production costs.

We have performed estimates of our ultimateenue for our three released projec&ee No Evil, The MarinendThe Condemned as o
December 31, 2008, as well as the capitalized dostgarious films in development, and believe migliional writedown is required at tF
time.

. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Our receivables represent a significant portiomwf current assets. We are required to estimatedhectibility of our receivables and
establish allowances for the amount of receivatilas we estimate to be uncollectible. We base tldegvances on our historical collect
experience, the length of time our receivablesarstanding and the financial condition of indivadiicustomers. Changes in the finar
condition of significant customers, either advessepositive, could impact the amount and timingaafy additional allowances that may
required. As of December 31, 2008, our allowancafubtful accounts was $4.7 million.

. Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordancé wie provisions of Statement of Financial AccongitStandard No. 10%ccounting fo
Income Taxe. As such, we recognize the future impact of tHeeince between the financial statement and taisha assets and liabiliti¢
As of December 31, 2008, we have $7.1 million dfdeferred tax assets on our balance sheet. Wedrgatuation allowances against defe
tax assets when management does not believe tre fiaix benefits are more likely than not to bdized. We do not recognize the benefit
tax position, for financial statement purposesgaslthe position is more likely than not todustained upon review by competent author
Accruals for uncertain tax positions are providedif accordance with the requirements of FIN 48dér FIN 48, we may recognize the
benefit from an uncertain tax position only if & more likely than not that the tax position wi# Bustained on examination by the ta
authorities, based on the technical merits of W&tpn. The tax benefits recognized in the finahstatements from such a position shoul
measured based on the largest benefit that hasategrthan 50% likelihood of being realized upaimate settlement. FIN 48 also provi
guidance on derecognition of income tax assetdiahiiities, classification of current and deferredome tax assets and liabilities, accour
for interest and penalties associated with taxtjpos, and income tax disclosures. Judgment isimed|in assessing the future tax conseque
of events that have been recognized in our findistéements or tax returns. Variations in the alctwtcome of these future tax conseque
could materially impact our financial position, uéis of operations, or cash flows.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Effective January 1, 2008, we adopted Stat¢ro€ Financial Accounting Standard No. 15-&ir Value Measurementsor SFAS 157
which establishes a framework for measuring falugand requires enhanced disclosures about fhievaeasurements. SFAS 157 defines
value as the price that would be received by sglfin asset or would be paid to transfer a liabilityan orderly transaction between ma
participants. SFAS 157 also requires disclosuresabow fair value is determined for assets andlli@s and establishes a hierarchy for wt
these assets and liabilities must be grouped, bassaynificant levels of inputs as follows:

Level 1- quoted prices are available in active marketsdentical assets or liabilities;

Level 2- quoted prices are available in active markets ifoilar assets and liabilities and the value of éisset or liability can be estima
using other inputs that are observable in the madk:

Level - the value of the asset or liability is based oteast one unobservable input, and reflects a cog’s own assumptions about
market value of the asset or liability, such asdimted cash flow models or valuatio

The determination of where assets and liabilitekwithin this hierarchy is based upon the lowlesel of input that is significant to the f
value measurement.

The following table sets forth the characterizatwithin the hierarchy of those assets that areiredquo be measured at fair value ¢
recurring basis as of December 31, 2008:

Quoted Market  Significant Other Significant

Prices in Active Observable Unobservable  Fair Value at
Markets Inputs Inputs December 31
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2008




(in thousands

Municipal bonds $ - % 57,61C $ - $ 57,61
Student loan auction rate securities - - 22,29¢ 22,29¢
Other 76 1,127 - 1,20z
Total $ 7€ $ 58,737 $ 22,29¢ $ 81,11

Certain financial instruments are carriea¢t@dt on the consolidated balance sheets, whichogippates fair value due to their sheetrm
highly liquid nature. These instruments includehcasd equivalents, accounts receivable, prepaigresgs, accounts payable and acc
expenses.

We have classified our investment in auctiate securities (“ARS"within Level 3. Starting in February 2008, we expeced difficulty
selling our investment in ARS due to multiple fads of the auction mechanism that provides liguitbtthese investments. The securities
been classified within Level 3 as their valuatiequires substantial judgment and estimation obfacthat are not currently observable in
market due to the lack of trading in the securitighich continues as of December 31, 2008. Ourodisted cash flow analysis conside
among other things, the quality of the underlyirgdlateral, the credit rating of the issuers, arineste of when these securities are e
expected to have a successful auction or othemgisen to par value. Because of the inherent stilsjgcin valuing these securities, we @
considered independent valuations obtained for eholar ARS as of December 31, 2008 in estimativgirtfair values.
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The table below includes a roll forward of our istreents in ARS from January 1, 2008 to December2B808, and a reclassification
these investments from Level 2 to Level 3 in thiz&ton hierarchy.

Significant Other Significant
Observable Inputs  Unobservable Inputs

(Level 2) (Level 3)

(in thousands

Fair Value January 1, 2008 $ 77,338 $ -
Purchases 46,78( -
Sales (89,765 (9,500)
Transfers (out) in (34,35() 34,35(
Unrealized (losses) - (2,557)
Total $ - $ 22,29¢

In February 2007, the Financial Accountingri8tards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. TH® Fair Value Option for Financial Assets i
Financial Liabilities Including an Amendment of FASStatement 11{SFAS 159). SFAS 159 expands opportunities to w@se alue
measurements in financial reporting and permitgtiestto choose to measure many financial instrumand certain other items at fair va
SFAS 159 was effective for us as of January 1, 2b08we did not elect to measure any additionaritial instruments at fair value as a re
of this statement. Therefore, the adoption of SEAS has not had an impact on our Consolidated Eiab8tatements.

In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Seadsition (FSP) No. 157-2, Effective Date of FASEt8ment No. 157. FSP No. 187-
which delays the effective date of SFAS No. 157dibnon-financial assets and néinancial liabilities, except for items that areognized c
disclosed at fair value in the financial statememtsa recurring basis (at least annually), un#l leginning of the first quarter of 2009. We
currently evaluating the impact that FSP No. 15¥i{Phave on our Consolidated Financial Statements.

In June 2008, the FASB issued FSP Emergisgels Task Force (EITF) 03-6-1, Determining Whethstruments Granted in ShaBaset
Payment Transactions are Participating Securilibe. FSP states that unvested share-based paymardsathiat contain noforfeitable right
to dividends or dividend equivalents are considépatticipating securities” as defined in EITF 83and therefore should be included in
computation of earnings per share under the dlaes method. This FSP is effective for financtateaments issued for fiscal years and int
periods beginning after December 15, 2008. We areently evaluating the impact the adoption of FEP6-1 will have on our Consolidat
Financial Statements.

In October 2008, the FASB issued FASB Stalitton (FSP) 153, Determining the Fair Value of a Financial Aséétien the Market fc
That Asset Is Not Active, which clarifies applieatiof SFAS No. 157 in a market that is not activBP 1573 was effective upon issuan
including prior periods for which financial statemte have not been issued. The adoption of FSP31did-not have a material impact on
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Cautionary Statement for Purposes of the “Safe Harbr” Provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Adt1995 provides a “safe harbor” for certain statats that are forwarkboking and are ni
based on historical facts. When used in this Repbe words “may,” “will,” “could,” “anticipate,” plan,” “continue,” “project,” “intend;
“estimate”, “believe”, “expect” and similar exprésss are intended to identify forward-looking stagmnts, although not all forwalddeking
statements contain such words. These statemeats telour future plans, objectives, expectationsiatentions and are not historical facts
accordingly involve known and unknown risks andenainties and other factors that may cause theahotsults or the performance by u
be materially different from future results or perhance expressed or implied by such forwlaaking statements. The following factc
among others, could cause actual results to diffaterially from those contained in forwalmbking statements made in this Report, in
releases and in oral statements made by our amétubdfficers: (i) our failure to maintain or ren&ey agreements could adversely affect
ability to distribute our television and pay-pgew programming; (ii) our failure to continue tewklop creative and entertaining programs
events would likely lead to a decline in the popityaof our brand of entertainment; (iii) our faiki to retain or continue to recruit |
performers could lead to a decline in the appeauwfstorylines and the popularity of our brancenfertainment; (iv) the loss of the crea
services of Vincent K. McMahon could adversely efffeur ability to create popular characters andtive storylines; (v) continued decline
general economic conditions and disruption in feiahmarkets could adversely affect our busineg8;ur accounts receivable represe
significant portion of our current assets and eelatincipally to a limited number of distributoiscreasing our exposure to bad debts
potentially impacting our results of operationsij)(a decline in the popularity of our brand of sigoentertainment, including as a resul
changes in the social and political climate, coadiyersely affect our business; (viii) changes m tbgulatory atmosphere and related pr
sector initiatives could adversely affect our bes# (ix) the markets in which we operate are Rigldmpetitive, rapidly changing a
increasingly fragmented, and we may not be ablecimpete effectively, especially against competitoith greater financial resources
marketplace presence; (x) we face uncertaintiescaged with international markets; (xi) we maygsehibited from promoting and conduct
our live events if we do not comply with applicabégulations; (xii) because we depend upon outlétieial property rights, our inability
protect those rights, or our infringement of othergellectual property rights, could adversely affecr business; (xiii) we could inc
substantial liabilities if pending litigation isselved unfavorably; (xiv) we could incur substahliability in the event of accidents or injur
occurring during our physically demanding events) (ve will continue to face the risk of impairmectiarges relating to our feature film
the demand for one or more of our films does nottnoeir expectations; (xvi) through his beneficiainership of a substantial majority of «
Class B common stock, our controlling stockholdéncent K. McMahon, can exercise control over offaiss, and his interests may conf
with the holders of our Class A common stock; (xwie could face a variety of risks if we expandintew or complementary business; (xvi
substantial number of shares are eligible for bgl&r. McMahon, and the sale of those shares clowler our stock price; and (xix) our Cl
A common stock has a relatively small public “ffodh addition to these risks and uncertainties, aviddnd is based on a number of fact
including our liquidity and historical and projedteash flow, strategic plan, our financial resaltsl condition, contractual and legal restrict
on the payment of dividends and such other fa@ersur Board of Directors may consider relevane fidnwardiooking statements speak o
as of the date of this Report and undue relianoaldmot be placed on these statements.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure®aut Market Risk

In the normal course of business, we are exposéateégn currency exchange rate, interest rateeaquity price risks that could impact «
results of operations. Our foreign currency exclearade risk is minimized by maintaining minimal @etsets and liabilities in currencies o
than our functional currency.

Interest Rate Ris

We are exposed to interest rate risk related todebt and investment portfolio. Our debt consistthe mortgage related to our corpo
headquarters, which has an annual interest rate6®6. The fair value of this debt is not signifidgrdifferent from its carrying amount.

Our investment portfolio consists primarily of meipial bonds and student loan auction rate secsintigéh a strong emphasis placec
preservation of capital. In an effort to minimizer@xposure to interest rate risk, our investmentfplio’s dollar weighted duration is less tl
one year. Due to the nature of our investmentscamdtrategy to minimize market and interest regte, we believe that our portfolio would |
be materially impacted by adverse fluctuationsieriest rates.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Di

The information required by this item is set fanhthe Consolidated Financial Statements filed il report.
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accourtiaon Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None



Item 9A. Controls and Procedure

We have performed an evaluation under the superviand with the participation of our managementjuiding our Chairman, Chi
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer ofetteffectiveness of our disclosure controls and gaaces, as defined under the Secul
Exchange Act of 1934. Based on that evaluation,Ghairman, Chief Executive Officer, and Chief Fioiah Officer concluded that as of 1
end of the period covered by this Form KQeur disclosure controls and procedures werecttffe and designed to ensure that all mat
information required to be disclosed by the Companyeports that it files or submits under the Exope Act is recorded, procest
summarized and reported within the time period<i§ipd by the SEC and that such information is acolated and communicated to
management, as appropriate to allow timely decssregarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finarad Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnagicitaining adequate internal control over finah@porting, as such term is definet
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 158(f). Under the supervision and with the partitipa of our management, including our Chairn
Chief Executive Officer, and Chief Financial Officave conducted an evaluation of the effectivermseur internal control over financ
reporting as of December 31, 2008 based on thesljn@$ established imternal Control — Integrated Frameworksued by the Committee
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis@@@DSO). Our internal control over financial refrmgtincludes policies and procedt
that provide reasonable assurance regarding tiabiteey of financial reporting and the preparatiohfinancial statements for external repor
purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accegtedunting principles.

Based on the results of our evaluation, our managérooncluded that our internal control over finahceporting was effective as
December 31, 2008. We review the results of managémassessment with our Audit Committee.

The effectiveness of our internal control over fioial reporting as of December 31, 2008 has beditealiby Deloitte & Touche LLP, i
independent registered public accounting firm, tated in their report which is included in this Amh Report on Form 18- Such repo
expresses an unqualified opinion on the effectigsrd the Company’s internal control over financégorting as of December 31, 2008.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.
Stamford, CT

We have audited the internal control over financggdorting of World Wrestling Entertainment, Inmdasubsidiaries (the "Company") as
December 31, 2008, based on criteria establishethtarnal Control — Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponso
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Camgamanagement is responsible for maintainingcéffe internal control over financ
reporting and for its assessment of the effectisend internal control over financial reportingelided in the accompanyinganagement
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reportil. Our responsibility is to express an opinion oa tBompany's internal control o
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadslof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8a&nited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting w
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal contka@r financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, testing and etimaduthe design and operating effectiveness ofiratecontrol based on the assessed risk
performing such other procedures as we considereedssary in the circumstances. We believe thaaudit provides a reasonable basis fol
opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repogtiis a process designed by, or under the supenvis, the company's principal execu
and principal financial officers, or persons penfiorg similar functions, and effected by the compsiboard of directors, management,
other personnel to provide reasonable assuraneedieg the reliability of financial reporting anbet preparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generally @edeaccounting principles. A company's internaitod over financial reporting includ
those policies and procedures that (1) pertaihearaintenance of records that, in reasonablel dataurately and fairly reflect the transacti
and dispositions of the assets of the companypi@ide reasonable assurance that transactiongeeseded as necessary to permit prepar
of financial statements in accordance with gengi@dlcepted accounting principles, and that recaiptsexpenditures of the company are t
made only in accordance with authorizations of ngan@ent and directors of the company; and (3) peviehsonable assurance regar
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asifjon, use, or disposition of the company's assleqit could have material effect on tf
financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal tconover financial reporting, including the pogstlp of collusion or improper managemu
override of controls, material misstatements duertor or fraud may not be prevented or detected ¢imely basis. Also, projections of ¢



evaluation of the effectiveness of the internaltoanover financial reporting to future periods amebject to the risk that the controls r
become inadequate because of changes in conditivttgt the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mialerespects, effective internal control over fical reporting as of December 31, 2(
based on the criteria establishedlmternal Control — Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiminthe
Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@dnited States), the consolida
financial statements and financial statement sdeeds of and for the year ended December 31, 20@BeoCompany and our report de
February 27, 2009 expressed an unqualified opiaiothose financial statements and financial statésehedule.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Stamford, Connecticut
February 27, 2009
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Item 9B. Other Information
None.

PART IlI

The information required by Part Il (Item8-14) is incorporated herein by reference to ourriiéfie proxy statement for our 2009 Ann
Meeting of Stockholders, except for the equity cemgation plan information required by Item 12, vbhig set forth above in Item 5.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedul
(a) The following documents are filed as a patthig report:

1. Consolidated Financial Statements and Sche8eleindex to Consolidated Financial Statementsage p-1 of this Report.

2. Exhibits:

Exhibit
No. Description of Exhibit
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatimtofporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to our Regtior
Statement on Form-1 (No. 33:-84327)).

3.1A Amendment to Amended and Restated Certificate cbriporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit(d) to ou
Registration Statement on Forr-8, filed July 15, 2002,

3.2 Amended and Restated -laws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to Registration Statement on Forr-1 (No
335-84327)).

3.2A Amendment to Amended and Restated-Laws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2(a) dur Registratic
Statement on Form-8, filed July 15, 2002

10.1  World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. 2007 Omnibusdntive Plan, effective July 20, 2007 (incorporatgdeference t
Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on For-K filed July 26, 2007).’

10.2 Form of Agreement for Performance Stock Units ® @ompan’s employees and officers under the Com['s 200°
Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by referemcd&xhibit 10.3 to the Current Report on FornK&Hed July 26
2007).*

10.3 Form of Agreement for Restricted Stock Units to @empany’s employees and officers under the Comijga2@0’
Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by referercé&xhibit 10.4 to the Current Report on FornK8Hed July 26
2007).*

124 Employment Agreement with Vincent K. McMahon, datedtober 14, 1999 (incorporated by reference toilkth0.z



10.4A

10.4B

10.5

10.5A

10.6

10.6A

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18
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to our Registration Statement on For-1 (No. 33:-84327)).*

Amendment, dated as of May 1, 2002, to Employmegredment with Vincent K. McMahon (incorporated keyerenc
to Exhibit 10.2A to our Annual Report on Form-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2002

Amendment, dated June 23, 2006, to Employment Agee¢ with Vincent K. McMahon (incorporated by refece ti
Exhibit 10.2B to our Annual Report on Form-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2006

Booking Contract with Vincent K. McMahon, dated Fedry 15, 2000 (incorporated by refereito Exhibit 10.3 to ot
Annual Report on Form K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2000
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Amendment, dated July 3, 2001, to Booking Contveithh Vincent K. McMahon (incorporated by referertceExhibit
10.3A to our Annual Report on Form-K for the fiscal year ended April 32001).*

Employment Agreement with Linda E. McMahon dateddBer 14, 1999 ((incorporated by reference to ExHi0.3 tc
our Registration Statement on For-1 (No. 33:-84327)).*

Amendment, dated June 23, 2006, to Employment Ageeé with Linda E. McMahon (incorporated by referertc
Exhibit 10.4A to our Annual Report on Form-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2006

Booking Contract with Linda E. McMahon, dated Fetgul5, 2000 (incorporated by reference to Exhifit5 to ou
Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2000

World Wrestling Entertainment Employee Stock PusehRlan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16.6ur Annug
Report on Form 1-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2002

Registration Rights Agreement, dated August 30,1208y and between Invemed Catalyst Fund, L.P. aratld
Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. (incorporated by refece to Exhibit 10.10 to our Annual Report on FdréK for the
fiscal year ended April 30, 200z

Open End Mortgage Deed, Assignment of Rents andriBedgreement between TSI Realty Company and Gl
Commercial Mortgage Corp. (assigned to Citicorp IRestate, Inc.), dated as of December 12, 19970(purated b
reference to Exhibit 10.11 to our Registration &tant on Form -1 (No. 33-84327)).

Promissory Note issued by TSI Realty Company to GMBommercial Mortgage Corp. (assigned to Citicoga
Estate, Inc.), dated as of December 12, 1997 (pmrated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to our Regigin Statement (
Form &1 (No. 33:-84327)).

Environmental Indemnity Agreement among TSI Re&lompany, Titan Sports Inc. and GMAC Commercial age
Corp. (assigned to Citicorp Real Estate, Inc.)edats of December 12, 1997 (incorporated by referém Exhibit 10.1
to our Registration Statement on For-1 (No. 33:-84327)).

Assignment of Leases and Rents between TSI Reatgp@ny and GMAC Commercial Mortgage Corp. (assigio
Citicorp Real Estate, Inc.), dated as of DecemBerl 997 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1Gd.éur Registratic
Statement on Form-1 (No. 33:-84327)).

Agreement between WWW/orld Wide Fund for Nature and Titan Sports, Inatedl January 20, 1994 (incorporate!
reference to Exhibit 10.16 to our Registration &tant on Form-1 (No. 33:-84327))

Revised offer letter between the Company and Dd@o&dsmith (incorporated by reference to Exhibit19% ou
Current Report on Formr-K, dated December 1, 2008

Offer letter between the Company and George A.i8arfincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21oto Currer
Report on Form -K, dated March 14, 2008)

Employment Agreement with Frank G. Serpe, datedchl&, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibitl&0o ou
Annual Report on Form =K for the transition period ended December 31, 20C

Separation Agreement and Release between the CgrapanMichael Sileck (incorporated by referenc&xibit 10.!
to the Current Report on Forn-K, dated December 31, 2008

List of Subsidiaries (filed herewith
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23.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent regisd public accounting firm (filed herewitl

31.1 Certification by Vincent K. McMahon pursuant to 8en 302 of Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith
31.z Certification by Linda E. McMahon pursuant to SentB02 of Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith
31.2 Certification by George A. Barrios pursuant to 88tB802 of Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith

32.1 Certification by Vincent K. McMahon, Linda E. McMah, and George A. Barrios pursuant to Section $08aobanes-
Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith

* Indicates management contract or compensatory @iarrangement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly causeddiport to be signed on its behalt
the undersigned, thereto duly authorized.

W ORLD W RESTLING E NTERTAINMENT, | NC.
(Registrant)

Dated: February 27, 20( By: /S/ VINCENT K. MCMAHON
Vincent K. McMahon
Chairman of the Board of Directors
(co-principal executive officer)

Dated: February 27, 20( By: /S/LINDA E. MCMAHON
Linda E. McMahon
Chief Executive Officer
(co-principal executive officer)

Dated: February 27, 20( By: /s/ GEORGE A. BARRIOS
George A. Barrios
Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial and accounting officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgl Act of 1934, this report has been signed belptihe following persons on behall
the registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

Signature Title or Capacity Date
/s/ VINCENTK. M ¢ M AHON Chairman of the Board of Directa February 27, 2009
Vincent K. McMahon (co-principal executive officer
/s/ LINDA E. M CM AHON Chief Executive Officer and Directi February 27, 2009
Linda E. McMahon (cec-principal executive officer
/s/ D ONNA G OLDSMITH Chief Operating Officer and Direct February 27, 2009
Donna Goldsmith
/s/ L oweLL P. WEICKERJr. Director February 27, 2009
Lowell P. Weicker Jr.
/s/ DAvVID K ENIN Director February 27, 2009

David Kenin



/s/ JOSEPHH. P ERKINS Director February 27, 2009
Joseph H. Perkins

/sl MICHAEL B. SOLOMON Director February 27, 2009

Michael B. Solomon

/s FRANK A. R IDDICK Il Director February 27, 2009
Frank A. Riddick Il

/s/ JEFFREYR. SPEED Director February 27, 2009

Jeffrey R. Speed

/s/ KEVIN D UNN Director February 27, 2009

Kevin Dunn
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.
Stamford, CT

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of World Wrestling Entertainment, Ina aubsidiaries (the "Company") as
December 31, 2008, December 31, 2007, and DeceBihe2006 and the related consolidated statemeritscofe, stockholders' equity ¢
comprehensive income, and cash flows for each efttfo years in the period ended December 31, 20@8,eight month period enc
December 31, 2006 and the year ended April 30, 2006 audits also included the financial statensshiedule listed in the Index at Item
These financial statements and financial statersemtdule are the responsibility of the Company'sagament. Our responsibility is to exp
an opinion on these financial statements and fimhstatement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBlaUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to obta@asonable assurance about whether the finast@ééments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tiliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and diss in the financial statements. An &
also includes assessing the accounting princigded and significant estimates made by managementethas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial stateteepresent fairly, in all material respects, tlarfcial position of World Wrestlir
Entertainment, Inc. and subsidiaries as of DecerBhe2008 , December 31, 2007 and December 31,, 20@bthe results of their operati
and their cash flows for each of the two yearsinperiod ended December 31, 2008, the eight mmeribd ended December 31, 2006 ant
year ended April 30, 2006, in conformity with acoting principles generally accepted in the Unitedt& of America. Also, in our opinic
such financial statement schedule, when consideresglation to the basic consolidated financiatestgents taken as a whole, presents fairl



all material respects, the information set forthréin.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@dnited States), the Compar
internal control over financial reporting as of Batber 31, 2008, based on the criteria establishéatérnal Control—ntegrated Framewol
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiohthe Treadway Commission and our report dateohleey 27, 2009 expressed
unqualified opinion on the Company's internal cohtwver financial reporting.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Stamford, Connecticut
February 27, 2009
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS
(dollars and shares in thousands, except per sladag

For the eight For the
For the years ended months ende Year endec
December 31 December 31 December 31 April 30,
2008 2007 2006 2006
Net revenue $ 526,45° $ 485,65! $ 262,93 $400,05:
Cost of revenue 311,78« 298,76 157,09: 227,17.
Selling, general and administrative exper 131,30 109,13: 61,04: 91,861
Depreciation and amortizatic 13,08t 9,31¢ 5,551 10,47
Operating incomi 70,28 68,43! 39,24 70,54(
Investment income, ni 5,87 9,11( 6,44( 7,39(
Interest expens (422) (552) (421) (587)
Other (expense) income, r (6,387) (517) 884 553
Income before income tax 69,35¢ 76,47¢ 46,14¢ 77,89¢
Provision for income taxe 23,94( 24,33: 14,52¢ 30,88¢
Income from continuing operatiol 45,41¢ 52,13} 31,61% 47,012
Income from discontinued operations, net of taxegge of $2: - - - 35
Net income $ 45,41( $ 52,13-1 $ 31,61-1 $ 47,04-1
Earnings per shar- Basic:
Continuing operations $ 0.6z $ 0.7: % 04t $ 0.6¢
Discontinued operations - - - -
Net income $ 06z $ 0.7 $ 04t $ 0.6
Earnings per shar- Diluted:
Continuing operations $ 06z $ 0.7z $ 044 $ 0.67
Discontinued operations - - - -
Net income $ 06z $ 0.7z $ 044 $ 0.67
Shares used in per share calculati
Basic 72,88¢ 71,61¢ 70,89¢ 69,36!
Diluted 73,52: 72,30: 71,59¢ 70,17¢

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financetke8tents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

As of:



December 31
2008

December 31
2007

December 31
2006

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 119,65! $ 135,808 $ 86,267
Short-term investments 57,68¢ 130,54¢ 161,88¢
Accounts receivable, net 60,13: 56,591 52,11
Inventory, net 4,95¢ 4,717 3,04¢
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 37,59¢ 20,05 13,33¢
Assets of discontinued operations - - 46¢
Total current assets 280,02¢ 347,72( 317,12:
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NE 92,36" 77,77 67,97.
FEATURE FILM PRODUCTION ASSET! 31,657 21,89( 53,56(
INVESTMENT SECURITIES 22,29¢ - -
INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET 1,18¢ 2,302 3,32¢
OTHER ASSETS 1,87¢ 20,37 11,30«
TOTAL ASSETS $ 429,41( $ 470,05¢ $ 453,28!
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current portion of long-term debt $ 100 $ 927 $ 862
Accounts payable 18,33 21,95 14,90¢
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 27,12 30,68¢ 25,53t
Deferred income 11,87¢ 18,01 20,16¢
Liabilities of discontinued operations - - 30z
Total current liabilities 58,33 71,574 61,77
LONG-TERM DEBT 3,872 4,87t 5,80(
NON-CURRENT INCOME TAX LIABILITY 7,23 10,227 -
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
STOCKHOLDERY EQUITY:
Class A common stock: ($.01 par value; 180,000d}G0es authorized;
25,080,454, 24,074,655 and 23,283,916 shares isswkdutstanding as of
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006) 252 241 23<
Class B common stock: ($.01 par value; 60,000,0@0es authorized;
47,713,563 shares issued as of December 31, 2008,&hd 2006,
respectively) A77 A77 477
Additional paid-in capital 317,10! 301,32¢ 286,98t
Accumulated other comprehensive income 1,171 2,89¢ 66€
Retained earnings 40,96¢ 78,43¢ 97,35(
Total stockholders’ equity 359,97- 383,38 385,71.
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY $ 42941 $ 470,05¢ $ 453,28
See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancatkeStents.
F-4
WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(dollars and shares in thousands)
Accumulated
Additional Other
Common Stock Paid - in Comprehensive Retained
Shares Amount Capital (Loss) Income Earnings Total
Balance, April 30, 200= 68,88. $ 68S $254,71¢ $ (908) $121,03° $375,53¢

Comprehensive income:
Net income

47,04

47,047



Translation adjustment — — — 1,32( — 1,32(
Unrealized holding loss, net of tax
of $726 — — — (1,185 — (1,185
Reclassification adjustment for
losses realized in net income,
net of tax of $692 — — — 1,12¢ — 1,12¢
Total comprehensive incon 48,31(
Stock issuances (repurchases), 284 3 (814) — — (811
Exercise of stock optior 1,397 14 16,80¢ — — 16,828
Tax benefit from exercise of stock optic — — 1,69t — — 1,69¢
Dividends paic — — 59¢ — (50,657 (50,069
Stock compensation cos — — 4,69/ — — 4,69/
Balance, April 30, 200€ 70,551 70€ 277,69: 35E 117,42° 396,18:
Comprehensive income:
Net income — — — — 31,61: 31,617
Translation adjustment — — — 46€ — 46¢€
Unrealized holding loss, net of tax
of $135 — — — (220) — (220)
Reclassification adjustment for
losses realized in net income, net
of tax of $40 — — — 65 — 65
Total comprehensive incon 31,92¢
Stock issuances (repurchases), 142 1 (61€) — — (615)
Exercise of stock optior 29¢ 3 3,67¢ — — 3,67¢
Excess tax benefits from stc-basec
payment arrangements — — 71z — — 712
Dividends paic — — 677 — (51,699  (51,01)
Stock compensation cos — — 4,84: — — 4,84:
Balance, December 31, 20C 70,99¢ 71C 286,98! 66€ 97,35( 385,71:
F-5
WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)
(dollars and shares in thousands)
Accumulated
Additional Other
Common Stock Paid - in Comprehensive Retained
Shares Amount Capital (Loss) Income Earnings Total
Balance, December 31, 20C 70,99¢ $ 71C  $286,98: $ 66€  $97,35(  $385,71:
Comprehensive income:
Net income — — — — 52,13} 52,13
Translation adjustment — — — 963 — 963
Unrealized holding loss, net of tax of
$31 — — — 51 — 51
Reclassification adjustment for losses
realized in net income, net of tax of
$744 — — — 1,21¢ — 1,21
Total comprehensive incon 54,36
Stock issuances (repurchases), 31¢ 3 (1,279 — (1,277
Exercise of stock optior 472 5 6,16¢ — 6,17(

Excess tax benefits from stc-basec



payment arrangements — — 841 — — 841
Dividends paic — — 882 — (69,54¢) (68,669
Adjustment to adopt FIN 4 — — — — (1,502 (1,507)
Stock compensation cos = — 7,73( — — 7,73(
Balance, December 31, 20C 71,78¢ 71¢ 301,32¢ 2,89¢ 78,43¢ 383,38(

Comprehensive income:

Net income — — — — 45,41¢ 45,41¢

Translation adjustment — — — (1,207 — (1,207

Unrealized holding loss, net of tax of

$404 — — — (660) — (660C)
Reclassification adjustment for losses
realized in net income, net of tax of
$89 — — — 144 — 144
Total comprehensive incon 43,69:
Stock issuances (repurchases), 551 6 (2,969 — — (2,957
Exercise of stock optior 514 5 6,26: — — 6,26¢
Excess tax benefits from stc-basec

payment arrangements — — 1,081 — — 1,081
Dividends paic — — 1,48¢ — (82,88¢) (81,399
Stock compensation cos — — 7,95¢ — — 7,95¢
Capital contribution by princip:

stockholder — — 1,95(C — — 1,95(
Ba|ance, December 31' 20C 72,85: $ 72¢€ $317,10£ $ 1,17j $ 40,965 $359,97‘

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financategtents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)
For the eight
month period For the year
For the years endec ended ended
December 31 December 31 December 31 April 30,
2008 2007 2006 2006
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $ 4541¢ $ 52,137 $ 31,617 $ 47,047
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating
activities:

Amortization of feature film production assets 15,61¢ 29,06: — —

Income loss from discontinued operations, net»f ta — — — (35)

Depreciation and amortization 13,08: 9,31¢ 5,557 10,47:

Realized losses on sales of investments 238 1,95¢ 10t 1,82(

Amortization of investment income 657 (493 (329 (1,702

Stock compensation costs 7,95¢ 7,77 4,84: 4,69

Unrealized (loss) gain on revaluation of warrants 3,031 1,17¢ (839 (1,479

Provision (benefit) for doubtful accounts 2,521 47 (1,579 494

Provision for inventory obsolescence 2,67¢ 1,03 1,42¢ 1,89¢

Provision (benefit) for deferred income taxes 6,60¢ (7,42]) 2,447 (1,667)

Excess tax benefits from stock-based payment aeraagts (1,087 (841) (712) —

Reimbursement of operating expenses by principleksiolder 1,95( — — —

Changes in assets and liabilities:



Accounts receivable (6,989 (4,53)) 17,23 (6,36¢)

Inventory (2,920 (2,709 (2,689 (2,625
Prepaid expenses and other assets (7,402 8,68¢ (2,764 (2,65¢)
Feature film production assets (25,524 (1,839 (17,46¢) (7,329
Accounts payable (3,61%) 7,04z (4,919 4,15¢
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (11,26)) (59¢) (10,279 20,84¢
Deferred income (4,719 (1,667) 621 (47§)
Net cash provided by continuing operations 36,24: 98,16: 22,28¢ 67,10:
Net cash provided by discontinued operations = - - 162
Net cash provided by operating activities 36,24 98,16! 22,28¢ 67,264
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipment (26,296 (18,159 (5,099 (9,376
Purchase of other assets (265) (369) (2,726 (881
Purchases of short-term investments (119,49) (211,36¢) (77,436 (53,765
Proceeds from sales or maturities of short-ternrestments 167,79¢ 242,88t 20,85( 148,90¢
Net cash provided by (used in) continuing operation 21,74( 13,00¢ (64,417 84,88¢
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayment of long-term debt (927) (860) (537) (757)
Issuance of stock, net 842 882 35C 482
Dividends paid (81,397 (68,664) (51,019 (50,069
Net proceeds from exercise of stock options 6,26¢ 6,17( 3,67¢ 16,82
Excess tax benefits from stock-based payment aeraagts 1,081 841 712 —
Net cash used in continuing operations (74,13)) (61,63)) (46,819 (33,51)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (16,150 49,53¢ (88,93¢) 118,63!
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOI 135,80 86,26 175,20: 56,56¢
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOI $ 11965/ ¢ 13580' $ 86,260 $ 175,20
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the period for income taxes, hetfonds $ 16,68: $ 24,29¢ $ 1953: $ 19,06(
Cash paid during the period for interest $ 41€ % 552 % 421 % 587

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financategtents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzag d

1. Basis of Presentation and Business Description

The accompanying consolidated financial statememside the accounts of World Wrestling Entertaimténc., and our subsidiari
“WWE" refers to World Wrestling Entertainment, Inand its subsidiaries, unless the context otherngsgiires. References to “we,” “us,”
“our” and the “Companytefer to WWE and its subsidiaries. We are an irgsgt media and entertainment company, principalyaged in th
development, production and marketing of televisaond pay-perdiew event programming and live events and thenBagg and sale
consumer products featuring our World Wrestlingeetainment brands. Our operations are organizegharéour principal activities:

Live and Televised Entertainment

e Revenues consist principally of ticket sales te levents, sales of merchandise at these live evevision rights fees, sales
television advertising and sponsorships, and feesiéwing our pay-per-view and video-on-demandgpamming.

Consumer Products

e Revenues consist principally of the direct saleSMWE produced home videos and magazine publishirtrayalties or license fe
related to various WWE themed products such aouigenes, toys and bool



Digital Media

e Revenues consist principally of advertising salesoor websites, sale of merchandise on our welisiteigh our WWEShop interr
storefront and sales of various broadband and mabihtent.

WWE Studios (formerly WWE Films)

e Revenues consist of our share of receipts fromdib&ibution of filmed entertainment featuring oBuperstars. We participate
revenues generated under the distribution of thesfthrough all media after the print and advergsand distribution costs incurred
our distributors have been recouped and the relsaits been reported to us.

All intercompany transactions and balanceshzeen eliminated.
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates— The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptedhia United Statt
of America requires our management to make estsratd assumptions that affect the reported amaiirassets and liabilities and disclost
of contingent assets and liabilities at the datéheffinancial statements and the reported ammfrmsvenue and expenses during the repc
period. Actual results could differ from those esties.

Fiscal Period— In June 2006, the Board of Directors elected tongkaour historical fiscal year end of April 30 tocalendar bas
beginning with calendar 2007. We therefore esthblisan eight month transition period from May 10@@hrough December 31, 2006. 1
period is referred to herein as “transition 2008 2006” or the “transition period"Prior to the transition period, our fiscal quartemsre
thirteenweek periods that ended on the thirteenth Fridayénquarter, with the exception of our fourth degrwhich always ended on Ay
30.

Cash and Cash Equivalerts Cash and cash equivalents include cash on depositernight deposit accounts and investments inay
market accounts.

Investments— We classify all of our investments as availaldedale securities. Such investments consist piiynaf pre+efundes
municipal bonds and student loan auction rate #@&srclassified as noodrrent due to recent failures of the auction maigm that provide
liquidity to these investments. All of these invashts are stated at fair value, with unrealizeshgyand losses on such securities reflecte:
of tax, as other comprehensive income (loss) ink$tolders’equity. Realized gains and losses on investmestiatuded in earnings and
derived using the specific identification method determining the cost of securities sold.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzsg d

Accounts Receivable- Accounts receivable relate principally to amouhig to us from pay-pesiew providers and television networks
pay-perview presentations and television programming, eepely, and balances due from the sale of hondeos and magazines. (
accounts receivable represent a significant porioour current assets. We are required to estittetecollectibility of our receivables anc
establish allowances for the amount of accountsivable that we estimate to be uncollectible. Wsebthese allowances on our histol
collection experience, the length of time our actsueceivable are outstanding and the financiatlitmn of individual customers. Accou
receivable are charged off when considered unddilec Activity in the allowance for doubtful accots is as follows:

Charged

Balance a (benefit) to Balance a

beginning costs and Write -offs anc end of

of period expense: other period
2008 $ 1358 $ 2521 $ 83¢ $ 4,71¢
2007 $ 208 $ 47 $ (779 $ 1,35¢
Transition 200¢ $ 3,740 $(157) $ (82) $ 2,08¢
2006 $3281 $ 494 $ (41) $ 3,74C

Inventory— Inventory consists of merchandise sold on a disat#s basis, and DVDs, which are sold through veabdedistributors ar
retailers. Substantially all of our inventory isngorised of finished goods. Inventory is statedhat bower of cost (first-in, firseut basis) ¢
market. The valuation of our inventories requiresnagement to make market estimates assessing #mits and the prices at which
believe the inventory can be so



Feature Films —Feature films are recorded at the cost of prodaciitcluding production overhead. The costs fomalividual film will be
amortized in the proportion that revenues bear anagemensg estimates of the ultimate revenue expected t@dmgnized from exploitatio
exhibition or sale of such film. Each reportingipdr in accordance witBtatement of Position GD-Accounting by Producers or Distributors
Films , management reviews and when necessary revisaslilhate revenue and cost estimates, which msyitren a change in the rate
amortization of film costs and/or write-down of all a portion of the unamortized costs of the fitnits estimated fair value.

Property and Equipment— Property and equipment are stated at historicat tess accumulated depreciation and amortize
Depreciation and amortization are computed onaigditdline basis over the estimated useful lives of theets or, when applicable, the life
the lease, whichever is shorter. Vehicles and eneip are depreciated based on estimated usefd limeying from three to five yea
Buildings and related improvements are deprecibtestd on estimated useful lives varying from fivéhirty-nine years. Our corporate airc
is depreciated over ten years on a straliglet-basis less an estimated residual value ofGkB,Blanned major maintenance activities relat
the corporate aircraft are capitalized and amattiaeer five years.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets We periodically evaluate the carrying amountarfgived assets when events and circumstances w
such a review.

Income Taxes— We account for income taxes in accordance wighptovisions of Statement of Financial Accountingn8lards (“SFAS’
No. 109,Accounting for Income TaxeOur deferred provision was determined under gsetaand liability method. Under this method,
deferred assets and liabilities are recognizeddasedifferences between the financial statemedtiacome tax basis of assets and liabil
using presently enacted tax rates. Valuation alfmea are established to reduce deferred tax assatsounts management believes are |
likely than not to be realized. We consider estedatuture taxable income and ongoing tax plannimgteggies in assessing the neec
valuation allowances. Accruals for uncertain tasifjons are provided for in accordance with theuresments of FASB Interpretation No.
Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Tay, (FIN 48). Under FIN 48, we may recognize the larefit from an uncertain tax position only
is more likely than not that the tax position Wik sustained on examination by the taxing autkgtitbased on the technical merits of
position. The tax benefits recognized in the finahstatements from such a position should be nredsbased on the largest benefit that
greater than 50% likelihood of being realized uptirmate settlement. FIN 48 also provides guidamtelerecognition of income tax assets
liabilities, classification of current and deferr@ttome tax assets and liabilities, accounting ifderest and penalties associated with
positions, and income tax disclosures. Judgmerggsired in assessing the future tax consequerfeageats that have been recognized ir
financial statements or tax returns. Variationgha actual outcome of these future tax consequecmelsl materially impact our financ
position, results of operations, or cash flows.
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Revenue Recognitior- Revenues are generally recognized when productshépped or as services are performed. However taltiee
nature of several of our business lines, theradditional steps in the revenue recognition procsslescribed below.

e Pay-per-view programming:

Revenues from our pay-péew programming are recorded when the event edadnd are based upon our initial estimate of theber o
buys achieved. This initial estimate is based atipinary buy information received from our pay-péew distributors. Final reconciliation
the pay-pewniew buys generally occurs within one year and aopsequent adjustments to the buys are recognizetiei period ne
information is received.

e Television advertising:

Revenues from the sale of television advertising r@corded when the commercial airs within our progning and are based u
contractual amounts previously established withamwertisers. These contractual amounts are typibaked on the advertisement reachi
desired number of viewers.

e Sponsorships:

Through our sponsorship packages, we offer adeestia full range of our promotional vehicles, imihg internet and print advertisit
arena signage, oaif announcements and special appearances by parssars. We follow the guidance of Emerging Isstesk Force (EITF
Issue 00-21Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverablesnd assign the total sponsorship revenues todhieus elements contair
within a sponsorship package based on their relaidir values. Our relative fair values for the sponsgrsdiements are based upc
combination of historical prices and current adseryy market conditions. Revenue from these packagaecognized as each elemel
delivered.



e Licensing:

Revenues from our licensed products are recogniped receipt of reports by the individual licenstes detail the royalties generatec
related product sales. If we receive licensing adea, such payments are recorded as deferred ewmbare recognized as income v
earned.

e Home video:

Revenues from the sales of home video titles azerded at the later of delivery by our distributorwholesalers, or the date that tf
products are made widely available for sale byilers net of an allowance for estimated returrise @llowance for estimated returns is bi
on historical information and current industry tisn

e Magazine publishing:

Publishing newsstand revenues are recorded whemd#wazine is shipped, net of an allowance for egtoh returns. We estimate
allowance for newsstand returns based upon ouewesf historical return rates and the expectedgperénce of our current titles in relatior
prior issue return rates.

Advertising Expense- Advertising costs are expensed as incurred, eXoeptosts related to the development of a majorroencial o
media campaign which are expensed in the periethioh the commercial or campaign is first presented

Foreign Currency Translatior— For the translation of the financial statementswf foreign subsidiaries whose functional curresce
not U.S. Dollars, assets and liabilities are tratesl at the yeaend exchange rate, and income statement accountsaaslated at avere
exchange rates for the year. The resulting transladjustments are recorded in accumulated otbeipeehensive income, a componer
stockholders’ equity. Foreign currency transactiaresrecorded at the exchange rate prevailingeatréimsaction date.
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Stock-Based Compensatier We adopted SFAS No 123(Rghare-Based PaymefSFAS 123(R)), which revises SFAS 123
supersedes APB 25, on May 1, 2006. SFAS 123(R)inesjthat new, modified and unvested shaamsed payment transactions with employ
such as stock options and restricted stock, begrézed in the financial statements based on tlzirvalue and recognized as compensi
expense over the vesting period. We adopted SFAfR)2ising the modified prospective method. Unté transition method, compensar
cost recognized in the current period includes amwof: (a) compensation cost of all share basear@svgranted to employees prior to,
unvested as of, May 1, 2006, based on grant datevditue estimated in accordance with the origipedvisions of SFAS 123, and
compensation cost for all stock based awards gilantbsequent to May 1, 2006, based on the graeffdiatvalue estimated in accordance
the new provisions of SFAS 123(R). In accordand Wie modified prospective method, results foopperiods have not been restated.
Note 13) For all periods presented, restrictedkstott and performance stock unit grants are resat fair value as of the issuance date,
the resulting compensation cost recorded over éiséing period.

In the fiscal year ended April 30, 2006, we accedrfor stock options issued to employees usingritimsic value method as prescril
under Accounting Principles Board Opinion No 2g&counting for Stock Issued to Employe€¢®APB 25") and related interpretations. Un
this method, no compensation expense was recognized the number of shares granted is known andxéecise price of the stock optiol
equal to or greater than the market price of carksbn the grant date. Stock options issued toamployees were accounted for at fair valt
the issuance date. We followed the disclosure-pnbwisions of SFAS No. 148ccounting for Stock-Based CompensatiorT ransition an
Disclosure, and SFAS No. 123Accounting for Stock-Based CompensatioBFAS Nos. 148 and 123 encouraged, but did nafine
companies to adopt a fair value based method fierakning expense related to stock-based compemsati

The following table provides relevant informatios @ reported results for the fiscal year endedilAfy, 2006 under our intrinsic val
method of accounting for stock options with supperal information as if the fair value recognitiprovisions of SFAS No. 123 had b
applied:

2006
Reported income from continuing operations $47,01:
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expenssdied|in

reported income from continuing operations, neetdted tax

effects 2,91C



Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensatioaresg
determined under fair value based method for adlrda; net of

related tax effects (3,74))
Pro forma income from continuing operations $46,18:
Reported basic earnings from continuing operatggrscommon

share $ 0.6¢
Pro forma basic earnings from continuing operatjpgrIscommon

share $ 0.67
Reported diluted earnings from continuing operaipar common

share $ 0.67
Pro forma diluted earnings from continuing openagiper common

share $ 0.6¢€

Derivative Instruments- We hold warrants received from certain publiclydgd companies with whom we have licensing or distior
agreements. Warrants received from our licensegsedevision programming distributors were inityatecorded at their estimated fair value
the date of grant using the Bla8lcholes option pricing model. That amount was medras deferred revenue and is amortized into tipg
income over the life of the related agreementsgusinaightline amortization. For 2008, 2007, transition 2G0®&l fiscal 2006, we recorc
revenues of $493, $493, $329, and $493, respegtirathted to the amortization of deferred reverageilting from the receipt of such warra
Subsequent to receipt, the warrants are adjustdteto estimated fair value each quarter, with gjegnin fair value included in other inco
(expense).

Intangible Assets— Our intangible assets consist of the cost of aegluiiim libraries which are amortized over threangeand acquire
trademarks and trade names which are amortizedtbres to six years. To the extent capitalized,intangible assets are being amortized
their estimated useful lives based on the periedassets are expected to contribute to our casls.fld/e perform impairment tests whene
events or circumstances indicate that intangibdetasmight be impaired.
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Earnings Per Share We present both basic and diluted earnings peegliE?S) amounts. Basic EPS is calculated by digidigt incom
by the weighted average number of common sharestamating during the year. Diluted EPS is based upenweighted average numbe
common and common equivalent shares outstandiriggitive year which is calculated using the treastiogk method (see Note 3). Comr
equivalent shares are excluded from the computatigeriods in which they have an adtiutive effect. Stock options for which the exee
price exceeds the average market price over thedare anti-dilutive and, accordingly, are excldidem the calculation.

Recent Accounting Pronounceme

Effective January 1, 2008, we adopted SFAS 187, Fair Value Measurementswhich establishes a framework for measuring ¥alue
and requires enhanced disclosures about fair vakesurements. SFAS 157 defines fair value as tbe frat would be received to sell an a
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly traction between market participants. SFAS 157 aspiires disclosure about how fair valu
determined for assets and liabilities and estaddishhierarchy for which these assets and liaslithust be grouped, based on significant |
of inputs as follows:

Level - quoted prices are available in active marketsdentical assets or liabilitie

Level Z- quoted prices are available in active markets ifoilar assets and liabilities, and the value of élsset or liability can be estima
using other inputs that are observable in the madk:

Level 3- the value of the asset or liability is béigm at least one unobservable input, and refeecismpanys own assumptions about
market value of the asset or liability, such asdisited cash flow models or valuatio

The determination of where assets and liabilitekwithin this hierarchy is based upon the lowlesel of input that is significant to the f
value measurement.

The following table sets forth the characterizatwithin the hierarchy of those assets that areiredquo be measured at fair value ¢
recurring basis as of December 31, 2008:

Quoted Market  Significant Other Significant



Prices in Active Observable Unobservable  Fair Value at

Markets Inputs Inputs December 31

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2008
Municipal bonds $ - $ 57,61C $ - $ 57,61
Student loan auction rate securities - - 22,29¢ 22,29¢
Other 76 1,127 - 1,20:
Total $ 76 $ 58737 $ 22,290¢ $ 81,11

Certain financial instruments are carried¢@dt on the consolidated balance sheets, whiclozippates fair value due to their shoetm
highly liquid nature. These instruments includehcasd equivalents, accounts receivable, prepaigresgs, accounts payable and acc
expenses.

We have classified our investment in auctiate securities (“ARS"Wwithin Level 3. Starting in February 2008, we expeced difficulty
selling our investment in ARS due to multiple fads of the auction mechanism that provides ligyititthese investments. The securities
been classified within Level 3 as their valuatiequires substantial judgment and estimation obfacthat are not currently observable in
market due to the lack of trading in the securjtisich continues as of December 31, 2008.
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The table below includes a roll forward of our istraents in ARS from January 1, 2008 to December2B808, and a reclassification
these investments from Level 2 to Level 3 in thiz&ion hierarchy.

Significant Other Significant
Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs

(Level 2) (Level 3)
Fair Value January 1, 2008 $ 77,33¢ $ =
Purchases 46,78( -
Sales (89,769 (9,500
Transfers (out) in (34,350 34,35(
Unrealized (losses) - (2,557
Total $ - $ 22,29¢

In February 2007, the Financial Accountingristards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. IB% Fair Value Option for Financial Assets i
Financial Liabilities — Including an Amendment of FASB Statement (BFFAS 159). SFAS 159 expands opportunities to ase Vialue
measurements in financial reporting and permit#iestto choose to measure many financial instrumand certain other items at fair va
SFAS 159 was effective for us as of January 1, 2B0Bwe did not elect to measure any additiomaricial instruments at fair value as a re
of this statement. Therefore, the adoption of SEAS has not had an impact on our Consolidated Eiab8tatements.

In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Saf§ition (FSP) No. 157-Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157. FSP Blo-2lwhich
delays the effective date of SFAS No. 157 for ah4financial assets and ndinancial liabilities, except for items that arecognized c
disclosed at fair value in the financial statememtsa recurring basis (at least annually), ungl bieginning of the first quarter of 2009. We
currently evaluating the impact that FSP No. 15¥i{Phave on our Consolidated Financial Statements.

In June 2008, the FASB issued FSP Emergisigels Task Force (EITF) 03-6etermining Whether Instruments Granted in Shaase:
Payment Transactions are Participating Securi. The FSP states that unvested share-based pagmards that contain ndiofeitable right
to dividends or dividend equivalents are considépadticipating securities” as defined in EITF 63and therefore should be included in
computation of earnings per share under the dlaes method. This FSP is effective for financtateaments issued for fiscal years and int
periods beginning after December 15, 2008. We areently evaluating the impact the adoption of FEBP6-1 will have on our Consolidat
Financial Statements.

In October 2008, the FASB issued FASB Stalitton (FSP) 157-3etermining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset \Whie Market fc
That Asset Is Not Activewhich clarifies application of SFAS No. 157 inrearket that is not active. FSP 18#was effective upon issuan
including prior periods for which financial statemte have not been issued. The adoption of FSI-3 did not have a material impact on



Consolidated Financial Statements.
3. Earnings Per Share

For purposes of calculating basic and dileachings per share, we used the following weightetage common shares outstanding:

2008 2007 T 2006 2006
Basic 72,888,68 71,616,12 70,898,62 69,360,85
Diluted 73,523,27 72,301,21 71,596,23 70,175,85
Dilutive effect of outstanding options 61,22¢ 209,57¢ 289,44 170,18t
Dilutive effect of restricted stock units 571,03. 474,02! 406,48: 644,81:
Dilutive effect of employee share purchase plan 2,32t 1,48¢ 1,68¢ —
Anti-dilutive outstanding options, end of year 157,00( 174,40( 277,00( 306,20(

Net income or loss per share of Class A Commonkod Class B Common Stock is computed in accoarith Statement of Financ
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 1Z8Barnings per Shar¢SFAS No. 128) using the twdass method. As such, and in accordance
Emerging Issues Task Force 03-®8rticipating Securities and the Two-Class Methodler FASB Statement No. 1PBITF 0306), an
undistributed earnings for each period are allatateeach class of common stock based on the pifopate share of the amount of ¢
dividends that each class is entitled to receivetifere were no undistributed earnings for yeaedridecember 31, 2008, basic and dil
income per share was the same for both the Classl/Class B stockholders.
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4. Intangible Assets

Our intangible assets consist principally of acediwrestling based film libraries, trademarks aadlé names. The cost of film librar
acquired during 2008, 2007, transition 2006 andafi006 was approximately $262, $363, $1,678 aB@il $respectively. The cost
trademarks and trade names acquired during trans2006 was $1,048. We did not purchase any tradenaad trade names in 2008, 200
fiscal 2006. Our intangible assets consisted ofalewing:

December 31, 2008

Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount
Film libraries $792¢ $ (7,030 $ 892
Trademarks and trade names 3,70¢ (3,419 291

$11,637 $(10,459) $1,18¢

December 31, 2007

Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount
Film libraries $ 7,661 $ (6,00 $1,66:
Trademarks and trade names 3,70¢ (3,06¢) 64C

$11,37¢ $ (9,07  $2,30:

December 31, 2006

Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying

Amount Amortization Amount



Film libraries $730¢ $ (5077 $2,227
Trademarks and trade names 3,70¢ (2,607) 1,101

$11,01: $ (7,684 $3,32¢

Amortization expense recorded for 2008, 2@@nsition 2006, and fiscal 2006 was $1,380, $,,$859 and $2,028, respectively.

The following table presents estimated future aipatibn expense:

For the year ending December 31, 2! $1,00¢

For the year ending December 31, 2 14€

For the year ending December 31, 2 34

Total $1,18¢
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5. Investment Securities and Short-Term Investments

Investments consisted of the following:

December 31, 2008

Unrealized
Holding
Amortized Gain Fair
Cost (Loss) Value
Student loan auction rate securities $ 2485( $ (2,55) $ 22,29¢
Municipal bonds 56,85¢ 75€ 57,61(
Other 128 (47) 76
Total $ 81,820 $ (1,842) $ 79,98!

The unrealized holding loss of $1,842 at Ddoen31, 2008 consisted of gross losses of $2,66@aims of $764.

December 31, 2007

Unrealized
Holding
Amortized Gain Fair
Cost (Loss) Value
Municipal and student loan auction rate securities $ 7733 % - $ 77,33
Fixed income mutual funds and other 54,17¢ (962) 53,21
Total $131,51( $ (967 $ 130,54

The unrealized holding loss of $962 at DecembelB0y consisted of gross losses of $1,144 and g&i$82.

December 31, 2006

Unrealized
Holding
Amortized Gain Fair
Cost (Loss) Value

Fixed income mutual funds $ 8999( $ (3,10) $ 86,88¢



Municipal and student loan auction rate securities 75,00( - 75,00(
Total $164,99C $ (3,10 $ 161,88

The unrealized holding loss of $3,101 at Decemlie2806 consisted of gross losses of $3,188 ant gdi$87.

Management deems investments to be impaifeenwa decline in fair value is judged to be otlemtemporary. If the cost of
investment exceeds its fair value, we evaluate,raputher factors, general market conditions, thatittn and extent to which the fair valu
less than cost, as well as the intent and abdityald the investment.

Starting in February 2008, we experienced difficidelling our investment in ARS due to multipleldags of the auction mechanism
provides liquidity to these investments. The samsifor which auctions have failed will continuedccrue interest and be auctioned evel
days until the auction succeeds, the issuer dadissecurities, or they mature. Accordingly, ther@yrbe no effective mechanism for sel
these securities and we may own long-term secsiriie such, we have classified our investment irs AR norcurrent investments. As
December 31, 2008, the Company had approximatey?$®2 of student loan auction rate securities whiate been valued at their estimi
fair value. Our discounted cash flow analysis coeid, among other things, the quality of the ulydeg collateral, the credit rating of t
issuers, an estimate of when these securities itirer @xpected to have a successful auction ornetee return to par value and expel
interest income to be received over this perioccaBiee of the inherent subjectivity in valuing theseurities, we also considered indeper
valuations obtained for each of our ARS as of Ddmm31, 2008 in estimating their fair values.

As of December 31, 2008 we do not believeutirealized loss position in these securities g% is other-thatemporary and as such,
unrealized loss has been recorded as part of adatedwther comprehensive income in our Consoldti&=mtement of StockholderEquity
and Comprehensive Income. We currently believewahave the ability to hold our ARS until one loé taforementioned remedies occur.
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In addition to the investments described abovealse hold warrants which we received from certaibligly traded companies with whc
we have licensing or distribution agreements. T8temated fair value of these warrants, determiredguthe BlackScholes model, was $1,1
$4,158 and $5,336 as of December 31, 2008, Dece®ih&@007 and December 31, 2006, respectivelyjsaiimttluded in other current asset
December 31, 2008. We recognized mark to markeisgdents of $(3,031), $(1,178), $839, and $1,4%#hdw2008, 2007, transition 2006,
fiscal 2006, respectively, relating to these wasawhich is included in other (expense) income, ne

6. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consisted of the following:

December 31 December 31 December 31

2008 2007 2006
Land, buildings and improvements $ 72,060 $ 60,64: $ 56,08
Equipment 71,14( 57,60¢ 45,75:
Corporate aircraft 20,85¢ 20,82¢ 20,82¢
Vehicles 634 634 634

164,69: 139,71. 123,29¢
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (72,32f) (61,94) (55,32)
Total $ 92360 $ 77,770 $ 67,97

Depreciation expense was $11,703, $7,930, $4,68%&444 in 2008, 2007, transition 2006, and fi46, respectively.

7. Feature Film Production Assets
Feature film production assets are summarized |

December 31, December 31, December 31,



2008 2007 2006

Feature film productions:

In release $ 5871 $ 20,46¢ $ 34,10
Completed but not released 22,66¢ - 18,55¢
In production 2,17: 311 -
In development 947 1,11C 89¢
Total $ 3165 $ 2189 $ 53,56

We have released three theatrical films, danong Transition 20065ee No EviandThe Marine, and one in 2007 he CondemnedDuring
2008 we recorded an impairment charge of $1,94&tingl to lower than expected results ee No Evil. Due to lower than expect
performance we recorded an impairment charge of6625relating torhe Condemneid 2007.

Unamortized feature film production assets areuatad for impairment each reporting period. If €stimated revenue is not sufficien
recover the unamortized asset, the asset will littewwrdown to fair value. As stated above, durif@2and 2008 we recorded asset impairi
charges of $15,662 and $1,940, respectively, tb aoevenues. As of December 31, 2008, we do rbeve any additional capitalized as:
included in Feature Film Production Assets are ingol

We estimate that approximately 48% of “Ineede”film production assets will be amortized over tlextntwelve months. Approximate
75% of “In release” film production assets arereated to be amortized over the following three gear

In addition to the capitalized production costatedl to the three released films, we have capg@lproduction costs for film projects wh
have been completed and are awaiting distributioing the upcoming year. These costs relate talmatrical titlel2 Roundsind a direct-to-
video titleBehind Enemy Lines 3: Colomhiavhich was co-financed with our distribution patnAdditionally, we currently have one direct-to-
video title inproduction and also have capitalized certain scdptelopment costs for various other film projedBapitalized scri
development costs are evaluated at each reporgrigdofor impairment if, and when, a project is nhee to be abandoned. Approxima
$886, $367, $0, and $197 of previously capitalidedelopment costs were expensed for abandonedcr@je2008, 2007, transition 2006, .
fiscal 2006, respectively.
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8. Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other liabilities consistath@following:

December 31 December 31 December 31

2008 2007 2006
Accrued pay-per-view event costs $ 4108 $ 495¢ $ 522¢
Accrued payroll related costs 7,972 7,73 5,40:
Accrued legal and professional fees 2,17: 1,84¢ 2,051
Accrued home video production and distribution 2,81¢ 5,19¢ 5,14¢
Accrued other 10,05¢ 10,94 7,70¢
Total $ 27,12. $ 30,68 $ 2553t

Accrued other includes accruals for our publishitedevision, and licensing business activities, emaf which exceeds 5% of curr
liabilities.

9. Debt

In 1997, we entered into a mortgage loan agreemneaér which we borrowed $12,000 at an annual istere of 7.6% with a matur
date of December 31, 2013. Principal and intenestabe paid in 180 monthly installments of apjmately $112. The loan is collateralized
our executive offices and television studio in Sftanth, Connecticut



As of December 31, 2008 the scheduled principayepents under our mortgage obligation were asvialio

For the year ending December 31, 2009 $1,00:
For the year ending December 31, 2010 1,082
For the year ending December 31, 2011 1,16¢
For the year ending December 31, 2012 1,262
For the year ending December 31, 2013 36C
Total $4,87¢

10. Income Taxes

For 2008, 2007, transition 2006, and fiscal 2006 were taxed on our income from continuing openatiat an effective tax rate of 34.t
31.8%, 31.5% and 39.6%, respectively. Our incomeptavision related to our income from continuingeeoations for 2008, 2007, transit
2006 and fiscal 2006 was $23,940, $24,337, $14a2629$30,884, respectively, and included federatesind foreign taxes.

The components of our tax provision from continuipgrations were as follows:

2008 2007 T 2006 2006
Current:
Federal $16,08¢ $27,99¢ $11,51¢ $22,59¢
State and local 26& 3,70¢ 27¢ 7,232
Foreign 981 57 29t 2,71¢
Deferred:
Federal 6,45% (6,729 2,167 (2,139
State and local 161 (701 27¢ 47¢
Foreign (9) - - -
Total $23,94( $24,337 $14,52¢ $30,88¢
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The income tax provision allocated to continuingi@tions and discontinued operations was as follows

2008 2007 T 2006 2006
Provision for income taxes - continuing operations $23,94( $24,337 $14,52¢ $30,88¢
Provision for income taxes - discontinued operation - - - 23
Total allocated provision for income taxes $23,94( $24,337 $14,52¢ $30,90°
Components of income before income taxes are ksl
2008 2007 T 2006 2006
u.s. $67,72: $76,20% $45,801 $77,35]
International subsidiaries 1,63 26¢ 34t 53¢
Income before income taxes $69,35¢ $76,47¢ $46,14¢ $77,89¢

The following sets forth the difference between phevision for income taxes from continuing opesai computed at the U.S. fed:
statutory income tax rate of 35% and that repditedinancial statement purposes:

2008 2007 T 2006 2006



Statutory U.S. federal tax at 35% $24,27F  $26,77! $16,15( $27,26:

State and local taxes, net of federal benefit 90¢ 1,95¢ 87¢ 5,012
Foreign rate differential 264 (39) 142 157
Tax exempt interest income (1,489 (2,664 (1,529 (1,205
Valuation allowance 10¢ 61C 11 292
Unrecognized tax benefits (23¢€) (2,177) - -
Other 10¢ (121) (2,12¢) (635)
Provision for income taxes $23,94( $24,337 $14,52¢ $30,88¢

The tax effects of temporary differences that giige to significant portions of the deferred taxsets and deferred tax liabilities
continuing operations consisted of the following:

December 31 December 31, December 31

2008 2007 2006
Deferred tax assets:

Accounts receivable $ 1,717 $ 501 $ 764
Inventory 3,83( 2,784 2,17¢
Prepaid royalties 2,01t 3,62 4,27(
Stock options/stock compensation 1,52¢ 2,91¢ 2,50¢
Credits and net operating loss carryforwards 1,15( - -
Investments 2,44 2,20z 2,84t
Intangible assets 3,10( 3,02¢ 3,26%
Feature film production asset - 6,032 -
Accrued liabilities and reserves 1,24: 217 -
Indirect income tax benefit 2,26¢ 4,36¢ -
Deferred tax assets, gross 19,29¢ 25,67 15,82(
Valuation allowance (2,78%) (1,622 (1,799
Deferred tax assets, net 16,51 24,04¢ 14,02:
Deferred tax liabilities:

Property and equipment depreciation (3,059 (4,329 (5,037)
Accrued liabilities and reserves - - (274)
Feature film production asset (6,385) - -
Total deferred tax assets, net $ 707t $ 1972¢ $ 8,71t
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The temporary differences described above repratifatences between the tax basis of assets bitifies and amounts reported in
consolidated financial statements that will resnltaxable or deductible amounts in future yearemvthe reported amounts of the asse
liabilities are recovered or settled. As of DecemB&, 2008, December 31, 2007 and December 31,,28D@13, $5,571 and $4,8
respectively, of the net deferred tax assets aleded in prepaid expenses and other current agsdtthe remaining $(40) is in other liabili
while prior year amounts of $14,155 and $3,843eetvely, are included in other non-current assetair consolidated balance sheets.

As of December 31, 2008, December 31, 2007 and rbeee 31, 2006, we had valuation allowances of $,%,622 and $1,7¢
respectively, to reduce our deferred tax asseds tamount more likely than not to be recovered. Vdiaation allowance is primarily relatec
the deferred tax asset arising from losses on imessts which are capital in nature for which reatiian is uncertain. These capital |
carryforwards that remain at December 31, 2008rbtgexpire in 2009. The remaining valuation allosrelates to losses incurred as a r
of our Australian film entities, and are not exgetto be realized.

We are subject to periodic audits of our variousrgturns by government agencies which could réaybiossible tax liabilities. Althoug
the outcome of these matters cannot currently bermiéned, we do not believe that amounts, if anlyictv may be required to be paid by re¢



of such audits will have a material effect on doahcial statements.

U.S. income taxes have been provided on unrem@éedings of our Brazilian entity and our Australfim entities due to the fact tt
WWE expects to remit or remitted during 2008 alingggs from these entities. U.S. income taxes béllprovided for unremitted earnings
any future special purpose entity film company lbsesof the tentative nature of such entities.

U.S. income taxes have not been provided for omoqipately $3,700 of unremitted earnings of our aémng international subsidiarii
These earnings are expected to be indefinitelyvesited overseas. It is not practical to computeedtanated deferred tax liability on th
earnings. Any additional U.S. taxes payable onrémeaining foreign earnings, if remitted, would histantially offset by credits for forei
taxes already paid.

FIN 48

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpiieta No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an fiptetation of FAS
Statement No. 10$IN 48). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for incertaxes by prescribing a minimum probability thiddhthat a tax positic
must meet before a financial statement benefiéi®gnized. As a result of the implementation of BBNon January 1, 2007, we recogniz
$1,502 increase in the liability for unrecognizaddme tax benefits, with a corresponding decraadiesi opening balance of retained earnings.

At the adoption date of January 1, 2007, we hadGiB4($10,382 net of federal benefit) of unrecogditax benefits and related interest
of which would affect our effective tax rate, icagnized. At December 31, 2008 and December 317,200 had $7,231 ($4,963 net of fed
benefit) and $13,130 ($8,765 net of federal bepaktspectively, of unrecognized tax benefits agldted interest and penalties, all of wi
would affect our effective tax rate if recognized.

We file income tax returns in the U.S., variougesteand various foreign jurisdictions. With few egtions, we are subject to income
examinations by tax authorities for years on oerapril 30, 2005. Based upon the expiration ofigts of limitations in several jurisdictio
the Company believes it is reasonably possible tthattotal amount of previously unrecognized tardjits may decrease by approxima
$167 within 12 months of December 31, 2008.

Unrecognized Tax benefits Tabular Reconciliation

2008 2007
Beginning Balance- January 1 $9,541 $10,51¢
Increase to unrecognized tax benefits recordegddsitions

taken during the current year 1,78 1,94¢
Decrease in unrecognized tax benefits relating to

settlements with taxing authorities (3,049 -
Decrease to unrecognized tax benefits Recorded for

positions taken during a prior period (110 (98E)
Decrease to unrecognized tax benefits resulting fidapse

of the applicable statute of limitations (2,082 (1,937
Ending Balance- December 31 $6,08: $ 9,541
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At December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, we$ha@B3 ($4,137 net of federal benefit) and $9,380,484 net of federal benef
respectively, of unrecognized tax benefits, allvbich would affect our effective tax rate if recdmgd.

We recognize potential accrued interest and pesatglated to uncertain tax positions in incomeetggense. At December 31, 2007,
had approximately $3,589 of accrued interest rdl&deuncertain tax positions. We have approxima$dlyl48 of accrued interest and penz
related to uncertain tax positions as of Decemtie2B08.

11. Commitments and Contingencies



We have certain commitments, including vasimoneancelable operating leases, performance contraitihs various performers a
employment agreements with certain executive affice

Future minimum payments as of December 31, 200&@nitheé agreements described above were as follows:

Operating
Lease Other
Commitments  Commitments Total
For the year ending December 31, 2009 $ 2,18 $ 19,45 $21,64(
For the year ending December 31, 2010 1,60¢ 16,77¢  18,38¢
For the year ending December 31, 2011 1,20t 9,877 11,08
For the year ending December 31, 2012 881 5,96¢ 6,84
For the year ending December 31, 2013 643 3,851 4,49/
Thereafter 891 10,95¢ 11,84
Total $ 7411 $ 66,880 $74,29:

Rent expense under operating leases included iimcamg operations was approximately $2,758, $2,819363 and $2,460 for 2008, 2C
transition 2006 and fiscal 2006, respectively.

Legal Proceeding:
World Wide Fund for Nature

In April 2000, the World Wide Fund for Natwaed its American affiliate, the World Wildlife Fdr{collectively, the “Fund”)nstituted lege
proceedings against us in the English High Cowekisgy injunctive relief and unspecified damagesdideged breaches of a 1994 agreel
between the Fund and us regarding the use of thalsri‘'wwf”. In August 2001, a High Court judge granted the Fanabtion for summa
judgment, holding that we breached the agreemenidiyg the initials“wwf” in connection with certain of our website addressed ou
former scratch logo. The English Court of Appeddsequently upheld that ruling. As a result we afgect to an injunction barring us, eit
directly or indirectly, from most uses of the ialg “wwf.”

As part of its original complaint, the Fund inclaide damages claim. On October 29, 2004, the Fuedi di claim for damages in the Eng
High Court seeking actual damages for legal an@érotiosts of approximately $575, which we have pmtedifor, and substantial monet
claims in an amount calculated as a royalty basedeotain percentages of our profits over the pedi@nuary 1997 through November 2!
We filed an application to determine as a prelimjriasue the propriety of the Fursdbasis upon which damages were claimed. The Qaec
that the Fund is entitled in point of law to seektitutionary damages, but that the question whetree Fund was entitled in point of fac
claim or recover damages on that basis remainedtendined. We appealed this decision, and by addrjudgment dated April 2, 2007,
English Court of Appeals reversed the High Couwrding that the Fund is not entitled in point of lawseek restitutionary damages agains
On May 1, 2007, the Fund filed a petition to theus® of Lords for leave to appeal the judgment ef@ourt of Appeals, which the House
Lords refused.
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We strongly believe that the Fund has not suffemregloss or damage, and would vigorously defenéhagany damages claim if the Ft
attempted, after so many years, to amend its comptaassert one. Based upon the decisions o€thet of Appeals and House of Lords,
do not believe this matter will have a materialede effect on our financial condition, result®pérations or liquidity.

Shenker & Associates; THQ/Jakks.

On November 14, 2000, Stanley Shenker & Aigdes, Inc. (“SSAI")filed a complaint against us in the Superior CairConnecticu
relating to the termination of an agency agreerbehteen SSAI and us. In October 2003, as a rekalgnificant litigation misconduct by t
plaintiff and its principal, Stanley Shenker (“Sker’), the court issued a comprehensive opinion @migr, dismissing plaintif§ case agair
us with prejudice and entering a default judgmenbir favor on all of our counterclaims for tortsoointerference with business relatic
conversion, fraud and conspira



We also filed a complaint against James B@&EIll"), one of our former officers, and certain entitietated to him, with respect
irregularities in the licensing program, which catodight through discovery in the SSAI litigatioBn February 10, 2005, Bell pleaded gt
in the U.S. District Court for the District of Coacticut to mail fraud as a result of kickbacks Bels paid by Shenker based on roys
received from certain WWE licensing agreements.Ja@muary 12, 2007, Shenker pleaded guilty in the Dis$rict Court for the District «
Connecticut to conspiracy to commit interstate dpanmtation of money obtained by fraud and wire drly, among other things, depriving u:
honest services through Shenker's and Bedlecret arrangement to split between themselwstyocommission monies paid by W\
licensees. On May 1, 2007, Shenker and Bell wenteseed to thirtythree and eight months, respectively, in prisoa assult of their crimini
conduct directed against us.

On October 19, 2004, as a result of informationoweced in connection with the SSAI matter, we filedaction in the U.S. District Co
for the Southern District of New York against Jalacific, Inc. (“Jakks”), two foreign subsidiarieg Jakks, THQ Inc. (“THQ"),THQ/Jakk:
Pacific LLC (“THQ/Jakks LLC”),SSAI and Bell Licensing, LLC. The suit also nhamesdafendants certain senior executives of Jakks),
Shenker and Bell. Our lawsuit alleged violationgted Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organization(RICO) and the Sherman Act, ¢
various claims under state law. We sought treblmitive and other damages and a declaration thateitisting videogame license w
THQ/Jakks LLC and a related amendment to the twgnkes with Jakks are void and unenforceable. larder dated March 31, 2006,
Court: (1) denied the defendants’ motions to disntiie RICO claim based on their enterprise argun{ghgranted the defendantsiotions t
dismiss the Robinson-Patman Act claim; and (3) @diuthe defendantshotions to dismiss the Sherman Act claim. In respato addition:
motions to dismiss, the court entered an orderddBecember 21, 2007, dismissing our RICO claim bsedhe court found it failed to alleg
cognizable RICO injury and it was tintexred, and dismissing the lawsuit because there we remaining federal claims. On Decembe
2007, we timely filed a notice of appeal with theSUCourt of Appeals for the Second Circuit. Thpesd has been fully briefed as of Febn
19, 2009.

On October 13, 2006, we filed a complaint in th@&ior Court of the State of Connecticut againsQTr&hd THQ/Jakks LLC arising out
the improper sublicense of rights to certain WWWanded videogames in violation of the applicabide@game license agreement.
complaint alleged claims for, among other thinggealsh of contract, unjust enrichment, violatiorthaf Connecticut Unfair Trade Practices
and a declaration that we are entitled to termittaeszideogame license agreement with THQ/Jakks.l@&March 30, 2007, we filed a mot
to cite in and to amend complaint in order to add rtlaims against the existing defendants, THQ BA®/Jakks LLC, and new defendal
Jakks, certain officers of Jakks, Stanley Shenketr Associates, Inc., and Shenker. The new claifeerd¢o the defendantgonduct it
connection with the corruption of WWg&agents, Shenker and Bell, and collusion to settier&/WE videogame license for THQ/Jakks L
In December 2007, we amended our complaint to tadelitional claims relating to the defendardsiruption of Shenker and Bell to sec
certain toy licensing rights.

On Marchl3, 2008, the defendants filed motions before théescourt for summary judgment and to strike, segkhe dismissal of ¢
counts of the amended complaint relating to tregdl procurement of the videogame license andinestaendments to the toy license.
August 29, 2008, the court issued a memoranduneoisibn, granting the defendantaotions for summary judgment and dismissing t
counts of the amended complaint relating to tregdl procurement of the videogame license andinestaendments to the toy license.
counts of the amended complaint relating to themgdints’illegal sublicensing of rights under the videogdinense were not dismissed.
September 18, 2008, we filed a motion to reargub vaspect to the coust’August 29, 2008 memorandum of decision, which dexsed o
December 12, 2008. On December 31, 2008, we tifiletya notice of appeal with the Court of Appeaighe State of Connecticut.
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On January 20, 2009, we filed a motion for pagiainmary judgment on our claims that THQ/Jakks dlggsublicensed rights in breact
the videogame license, which entitles us to terteitiae videogame license. On February 24, 2009défiendants filed their response to
motion as well as their own motion for summary jodmt on these claims.

On July 1, 2008, THQ and Brian Farrell filectross-complaint in the Superior Court of the &StdtConnecticut against Jakks. The cross:
complaint asserts claims for (1) breach of fiduciduty by, among other things, failing to keep TH@Qy informed of the severity and t
potential consequences of the allegations assbpt@fWE, failing to provide THQ with information TH@quested to allow it to responc
the allegations, failing to allow THQ an opportynio take steps to resolve the dispute with WWE placing its own interests ahead of
interests of THQ/Jakks LLC; and (2) breach of tiperating agreement between Jakks and THQ with cespeTHQ/Jakks LLC (thel'LC
Agreement”)by failing to use its best efforts to maintain ttedationship between WWE and THQ/Jakks LLC. In #ddito the foregoin
claims, the crossemplaint asserts separate claims for breach oty duty, breach of contract, fraudulent indueain unjust enrichmel
indemnification, cancellation of the LLC Agreemergscission of the LLC Agreement, and declaratetief, to the extent that we prevail
any of our claims against Jakks.

IPO Class Actior



In December 2001, a purported class action complaas filed against us asserting claims for allegietations of the federal securit
laws relating to our initial public offering in 199Also named as defendants in this suit were \finke McMahon, Linda E. McMahon a
August J. Liguori, a former Chief Financial Officgollectively, the “Individual Defendantsgnd the underwriters of our initial public offeri
According to the allegations of the Complaint, tmelerwriter defendants allegedly engaged in maatjue practices by, among other thir
pre-selling allotments of shares of our stock itume for undisclosed, excessive commissions froenghrchasers and/or entering into after-
market tie-in arrangements which allegedly ariifilyi inflated the Company’s stock price.

In December 2006, the Court of Appeals for the 8ddircuit ruled that the certification of this peeding as a class action was invalid
remanded the case to the Southern District of Nenk Y*SDNY”). The class plaintiffs requested the Second Cireuietonsider, which w
denied. We are unable to predict whether the pttswill be successful in amending their claimsaiccordance with the Second Circsiituling
or whether the case will be resolved by settlement.

Levy et al

On July 24, 2008, we were served with a summonscantplaint from three of our former talent purpogtito be on behalf of themsel'
and a class of similarly situated persons. The Uéwalleges breach of contract and unjust enrichnagising from our treating them
independent contractors rather than employees, hatlie plaintiffs allege is an erroneous classiftcat On August 22, 2008, we timi
removed the lawsuit to the U.S. District Court fbe District of Connecticut. We filed a motion tésmiss the lawsduit in its entirety
September 29, 2008 which, on February 20, 2009 grersted by the Court.

Other Matters

We are not currently a party to any other matdeghl proceedings. However, we are involved in sdvether suits and claims in 1
ordinary course of business, the outcome of whecimdt expected to have a material adverse effeaunfinancial condition, results
operations or liquidity. We may from time to timedmme a party to other legal proceedings.

12. Related Party Transactions

Vincent K. McMahon, Chairman of the Board of Dimrst, and his wife, Linda E. McMahon, Chief Execati®fficer, contrc
approximately 88% of the voting power of the iss@ed outstanding shares of our common stock. Thrdhgir beneficial ownership of
substantial majority of our Class B common stock, &hd Mrs. McMahon can effectively exercise cohtneer our affairs.

Beginning with the quarterly dividend payment in @@ 2008, Vincent K. McMahon, Linda E. McMahon anémbers of their immedic
family, as well as trusts for members of their fgnhave waived their respective rights to any jporiof the quarterly cash dividend in exc
of the first $0.24 per share. This waiver applesi Class A and Class B common stock beneficiallsned by any of the parties for a tt
year period ending February 2011, subject to easdienination in the event of the death of VincknMcMahon.
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In June 2008, the Company performed a bravateness campaign entitied McMaheMiillion Dollar Mania™, whereby a total of $3,C
in cash prize awards was given away to viewers wf Monday Night Raw television program. The prizermay for this campaign w
personally funded by the Chairman of WWE, Vincent McMahon. As such, the Company received a capitatribution of $1,95(
representing the net of tax impact to WWE for thegomoney awarded to the selected contestants.

WWE currently holds employment contracts with bdgthcent K. McMahon and Linda E. McMahon, which rilmmough October 2010, wi
annual renewals thereafter if not terminated byousMr. or Mrs. McMahon. In addition, Mr. McMahon lds a talent contract that
coterminous with his employment contract. Mr. McMahwaives all of his compensation under theseseageeats, except for a salary of $
per year. Mrs. McMahon waives all of her compermsaéxcept for a salary of $500 per year.

13. Stockholders’ Equity

Our Class B common stock is fully convertible i@ass A common stock, on a one for one basis, yatiare at the option of the hold
The two classes are entitled to equal per shaideatids and distributions and vote together as gschdth each share of Class B entitled tc
votes and each share of Class A entitled to one, extcept when separate class voting is requiregpplicable law. If, at any time, any sh
of Class B common stock are beneficially owned by person other than Vincent McMahon, Linda McMahany descendant of either
them, any entity which is wholly owned and is cotlied by any combination of such persons or angtjrall the beneficiaries of which are :
combination of such persons, each of those shaileswtomatically convert into shares of Class Antoon stock. Through his benefic



ownership of a substantial majority of our Clascd@nmon stock, our controlling stockholder, VincémtMahon, can effectively exerci
control over our affairs, and his interests cowdftict with the holders of our Class A common $toc

Beginning in February 2008, the Board of Directaushorized an increase in the quarterly cash didde $0.36 per share on all Clas
common shares not held by the McMahon family. Thartgrly dividend on all Class B shares, held byners of the McMahon family a
their respective trusts, will remain at $0.24 pard period of three years, through February 2014 paid four quarterly dividends of $0.36
share, or $35,592, on all Class A common share$@rid per share, or $45,805, on all Class B comshanes in 2008.

14. Share Based Compensation

The 2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan (“2007 Plapipvides for grants of options and other formsegfity-based incentive awards
determined by the compensation committee of therdBo& Directors as incentives and rewards to eregeiemployees, directors, consult
and performers to participate in our long-term ssgsc Prior to the 2007 Plan, share based compensedis governed by the Company’s Long-
Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP")which provided for grants of options to purchasereh at a price equal to the fair market valuehendate ¢
grant. In 2004, we began issuing restricted stotts (*“RSUs”),which generally vest annually. Current grants @utding have vesting peric
between three and seven years. In July 2007, warnbieguing performance stock units (“PSUs”) in fiddito RSUs.

As of December 31, 2008 there were approximatéyndllion shares available for future grants unither 2007 Plan. It is our policy to is¢
new shares to satisfy option exercises and théngest RSUs and PSUs.

Stock based compensation cost was $7,956, $7,4784% and $4,694 for 2008, 2007, transition 2006 f#stal 2006, respectively. T
total recognized tax benefit was $3,023, $2,95% @ and $1,878 for 2008, 2007, transition 2008, fistal 2006, respectively.

SFAS 123(R) also amends SFAS No. S@tement of Cash Flowsrequiring the benefits of tax deductions in esce$ recognize
compensation costs to be reported as financing ftask, rather than as operating cash flows asipusly required. The tax benefits in exc
of recognized compensation cost for 2008, 200 7tmrtsition 2006 were $1,081, $841 and $712, resmdgt
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Stock Options

The fair value of stock options was deterministhg the Blackscholes valuation model. Such value is recognize@xpense over t
service period, net of estimated forfeitures, usirgstraight line method under SFAS 123(R). Weehast granted any stock options since .
2004. We did not recognize stock compensation fcosttock options prior to the adoption of SFAS (2B8on May 1, 2006. See Note 2 for
forma net income disclosures for fiscal 2006.

The following table summarizes stock option acyidr 2008:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Stock Options Shares Price Term Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 1,193,06. $ 13.1¢€ 23 $ 2,29¢
Granted — — — —
Exercisec (517,45) $12.11 — —
Forfeited/Expirec (30,229 $13.1¢ — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 645,38t $ 14.0( 15 $ 0
Vested at December 31, 20 645,38{ $ 14.0( 15 $ 0
Exercisable at December 31, 2( _645,38t g 14.0( 15 % 0

As of December 31, 2008, there is no additional pemnsation cost related to unvested options thahbiget been recognized. We estin
forfeitures, based on historical trends, when retgg compensation expense associated with stptkrs, and will adjust our estimate
forfeitures when they are expected to differ. Thiginsic value of options exercised was approxifya$2,730, $2,038, $1,331 and $4,609
2008, 2007, transition 2006 and fiscal 2006, resypely.



Cash received from option exercises under all shased payment arrangements was $6,268, $6,170,%argl $16,823 for 2008, 20
transition 2006 and fiscal 2006, respectively. Baxefits realized from tax deductions associatetl stock option exercises totaled $1,(
$774, $506 and $1,751 for 2008, 2007, transitiod628nd fiscal 2006, respectively.

Restricted Stock Units

The fair value of restricted stock units (RSUsli&germined based on the number of shares grantethanquoted price of our comir
stock on the grant date. The fair value of restdcstock units is recognized as expense over tiviceeperiod, net of estimated forfeitui
using the straighline method under SFAS 123(R). We estimate forfegubased on historical trends, when recognizamgpensation expen
and adjust the estimate of forfeitures when theyeaipected to differ. For the year ended DecembgP@08, we estimate that 8% of the cur
yeal's restricted stock units will be forfeited oveetlife of the grant.

During 2008, we granted 105,000 RSUs at a weiglategfage price per share of $15.80 and an aggregatédate fair value ¢
approximately $1,659. Such issuances were grawoteficers and employees under our 2007 Plan. Wegrized $1,867 of compensal
expense associated with restricted stock unitschwhias classified as selling, general and admatise expense. Tax benefits realized f
RSU related compensation expense totaled $709.

We granted 190,750, 517,750 and 611,000 RSUs i, 2@&nsition 2006 and fiscal 2006, respectivelithvan aggregate gradiate fai
value of approximately $3,063, $8,538 and $7,868pectively. During 2007, transition 2006 and fis2@06, we recognized $4,931, $4,
and $4,694, respectively, of compensation experssocéated with restricted stock units, which waassified as selling, general
administrative expense. During 2007, transition @2@@d fiscal 2006, tax benefits realized from R®lated compensation expense tot
$1,874, $1,691 and $1,784, respectively
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The following table summarizes the activityreétricted stock units:

Weighted Average Gran

Restricted Stock Units Shares Date Fair Value
Unvested at December 31, 2C 761,38: $15.03
Granted 105,00( $15.80
Vested (451,38) $16.04
Forfeited/Expirec (66,24%) $16.03
Dividends 53,23¢ $15.13
Unvested at December 31, 2C 401,99 $15.79

The grant date fair value of restricted stock umésted was $7,240, $6,476, $2,372 and $4,475008,22007, transition 2006 and fis
2006, respectively.

As of December 31, 2008 there was $2,388 of totabaognized compensation cost related to unves®&dsRo be recognized ove
weighted-average period of approximately 0.7 yeBesed on the current restricted stock units ondtte, $1,7880f compensation exper
will be recognized in 2009 and the remaining $6@0kve recognized from 2010 to 2011.

Performance Stock Units

The estimated grant of PSUs is communicated to @mepk on the communication date, with the amounthefgrant based on achiev
predetermined financial metrics. The estimated remold PSUs expected to be issued is adjusted glyat@sed on the current performanc
the Company. The ultimate number of PSUs thatseid to an employee is a function of the actudbpeance of the Company compare
the performance targets.

The fair value of PSUs is initially determined bd&m the number of shares granted and the quoieel @ our common stock on the gr
date. The fair value of performance stock unitegnized as expense over the service periodyfredtimated forfeitures, using the straight-
line method under SFAS 123(R). We estimate forfeigubased on historical trends, when recognizemgpensation expense and adjus
estimate of forfeitures when they are expectedifferd For the year ended December 31, 2008, winagt that 8% of the current year’
performance stock grants will be forfeited over lifeeof the grant



The July 2007 issuance of approximately 475,000 8tk subject to performance goals establishethétast two quarters of 2007.
these goals were exceeded, approximately 585,008 R@re ultimately issued in 2008 that vest ineh@anual installments that began in .
2008.

During 2008, we issued approximately 471,500 PSldsveeighted average price per share of $18.8Badwf our 2007 Omnibus Incent
Plan. Based on the financial results for the yeated December 31, 2008, approximately 310,800 RP8Esxpected to be issued in 2
related to this grant. The estimated compensatiperese is $3,168 and the PSUs will vest in thremiahinstallments beginning in July 20
In 2008, we recognized $5,839 of compensation esppessociated with performance stock units, wiscblassified as selling, general
administrative expense, as compared to $2,34507.20ax benefits realized from PSU related comp@ms&xpense totaled $2,219 and $
in 2008 and 2007, respectively.

The following table summarizes the activity of meniance stock units:

Weighted Average Gran

Performance Stock Units Shares Date Fair Value
Unvested at December 31, 2C 466,75( $16.01
Adjustment 113,25( $16.29
Granted 471,50( $18.83
Vested (198,530) $16.23
Forfeited/Expirec (115,46 $16.69
Dividends 46,07 $14.87
Unvested at December 31, 2008 783,57 $17.58
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As of December 31, 2008 there was $4,406 of tatabeognized compensation cost related to unveskdésRo be recognized ove
weightedaverage period of approximately 0.8 years. Basedthen current PSUs outstanding, $2,999 of compemsatixpense will t
recognized in 2009 and the remaining $1,407 wiltdmognized from 2010 to 2011.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

We provide a stock purchase plan for our employeesler the plan, all regular fulime employee may contribute up to 10% of theire
compensation (subject to certain income limits)h® semiannual purchase of shares of our common stock.plihehase price is 85% of
fair market value at certain platefined dates. SFAS 123(R) defines this plan aspemsatory, and accordingly, a charge is recordedhf
difference between the fair market value and treealinted price. In 2008, two purchases occurred rasdlted in a $106 charge. :
employees were participants in the stock purch&se and these employees purchased approximatedpd@shares of our common stock a
average price of $11.86 per share.

15. Employee Benefit Plans

We sponsor a 401(k) defined contribution plan cmgesubstantially all employees. Under this plaartigipants are allowed to me
contributions based on a percentage of their sslagubject to a statutorily prescribed annualtlivie make matching contributions of
percent of each participast’contributions, up to 6% of eligible compensatiomximum 3% matching contribution). We may also g
additional discretionary contributions to the 4QL(kan. Our expense for matching contributions additional discretionary contributions
the 401(k) plan was $1,136, $1,010, $567 and $88iHgl 2008, 2007, transition 2006, and fiscal 2a@8pectively.

16. Segment Information

Revenues derived from sales outside of North Araewere approximately $135,183, $119,298, $60,4 16 $6v,686 for 2008, 20(
transition 2006 and fiscal 2006, respectively. Rexs generated in the United Kingdom representlangest international country whc
revenues were approximately $47,301, $45,068, $21a8d $34,788 for 2008, 2007, transition 2006feudl 2006, respectively.

We do not allocate corporate overhead to eacheoBéigments and as a result, corporate overhearkaciling item in the table belc
There are no intersegment revenues. The activifieach segment are summarized in Not



The table presents information about the finanaallts of each segment for 2008, 2007, transRi@®6 and fiscal 2006 and assets ¢
December 31, 2008, December 31, 2007, Decembe2(8B and April 30, 2006. Unallocated assets comsistarily of cash, investments ¢
fixed assets.
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2008 2007 T2006 2006
Net revenues
Live and Televised Entertainment $ 331,45 $316,84: $182,99¢ $290,78:
Consumer Products 135,66 118,08: 59,18: 86,41(
Digital Media 34,82: 34,77 20,75t 22,857
WWE Studios 24,51: 15,95¢ — —
Total net revenues $526,45° $485,65! $262,93°  $400,05:
Depreciation and amortizatio
Live and Televised Entertainment $ 637« $ 362¢ $ 216/ $ 3,561
Consumer Products 1,38¢ 1,38¢ 85¢ 2,02¢
Digital Media 1,20¢ 83¢€ 177 1,471
Corporate 4,121 3,47( 2,351 3,41z
Total depreciation and amortization $ 1308 $ 931¢ $ 555 $ 10,47
Operating income
Live and Televised Entertainment $ 92,38¢ $100,16: $ 57,000 $ 93,98¢
Consumer Products 76,47¢ 68,64: 26,85¢ 46,417
Digital Media 6,182 6,29: 3,79¢ 2,93:
WWE Studios 7,18¢ (14,749 (1,110 (1,284
Corporate (111,94 (91,920 (47,299 (71,510
Total operating income $ 70,287 $ 68,43: $ 39,24: $ 70,54(
As of:
December 31, 20C December 31, 20C December 31, 20C
Assets:
Live and Televised Entertainment $ 110,26 $ 9487: $ 77,08:
Consumer Products 19,91( 15,18¢ 14,98:
Digital Media 10,43( 9,74 6,12¢
WWE Studios 52,56¢ 45,24: 56,29¢
Unallocated (1) 236,23 305,01( 298,79:
Total assets $ 429,41( $ 470,05¢ $ 453,28!

(1) Includes assets of discontinued operationst6B%s of December 31, 2006.
17. Financial Instruments and Off-Balance Sheet Ris

Concentration of Credit Risk— We continually monitor our position with, and theedit quality of, the financial institutions thate
counterparties to our financial instruments. Owoants receivable represent a significant portioour current assets and relate principally
limited number of distributors, including our pagrriew and home video distributors. We closely manite status of receivables with th
customers and maintain allowances for anticipaiedds.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments- The carrying amounts of cash, cash equivalentsemomarket accounts, accounts receivable
accounts payable approximate fair value becausieeoshort-term nature of such instruments. Ourtdleom investments are carried at quu
market values. See Note 5 for additional inforntatiegarding Investment Securities and Shemt investments. Our debt consists of
mortgage related to our corporate headquarterghatids an annual interest rate of 7.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzsg d

18. Quarterly Financial Summaries (unaudited)

1StQuarter 2" Quarter 3" Quarter * 4™ Quarter

2008

Net revenue $ 162,63: $ 129,65¢ $ 108,78. $ 125,38!
Cost of revenue $ 100,01¢ $ 76,35¢ $ 66,27¢ $ 69,12¢
Net income $ 1952 $ 7,031 $ 527¢ $ 13,58t¢
Earnings per common share: be

Net income $ 027 $ 0.1C $ 007 $ 0.1¢
Earnings per common share: dilu

Net income $ 027 $ 0.1C $ 007 $ 0.1¢

2007

Net revenue $107,39. $ 137,51 $ 108,11( $ 132,64:
Cost of revenue $ 58,097 $ 100,520 $ 63,436 $ 76,71
Net income $ 15,13t $ 7,046 $ 8,44¢ $ 21,50¢
Earnings per common share: be

Net income $ 021 $ 0.1C $ 01z $ 0.3C
Earnings per common share: dilu

Net income $ 021 $ 0.1C $ 01z $ 0.3(

T 2006

Net revenue $ 93267 $ 96,23t $ 73,43« NA
Cost of revenue $ 53,266 $ 57,88. $ 45,94¢ NA
Net income $ 11,302 $ 10,3%¢ $ 9,91¢ NA
Earnings per common share: be

Net income $ 0.1€ $ 0.1t $ 0.14 NA
Earnings per common share: dilu NA
Net income $ 0.1€ $ 0.1t % 0.1z NA

* The third quarter in T 2006 consists of only twomonths
19. Subsequent Events

On January 9, 2009, WWE announced that it was ieduapproximately 10% of its staff across all aredsts global operations. T
reduction will result in annual savings of approately $8,000 in compensation and benefit costs.Gdmpany will record a one-time ptax
restructuring charge of approximately $2,653 in fingt quarter of 2009. The charge consists prilpaof severance pay and will be p
primarily in 2009.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

SCHEDULE Il — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(dollars in thousands)

Additions
Balance a Charged tc Balance a
Beginning Costs and End of
Description of Period Expenses Deductions (1 Period
For the Year Ended December 31, 20C
Allowance for doubtful accounts $135 $ 2521 $ 83¢ $ 4,71¢
Inventory obsolescence reserve 6,27¢ 2,67¢ — 8,95¢
Magazine publishing allowance for newsstand returns 4,80¢ 32,59¢ (31,139 6,26¢

Home video allowance for returns 6,622 18,80¢ (19,16¢) 6,26t



For the Year Ended December 31, 20C

Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 208 $ 47 3% (773 $ 1,35¢
Inventory obsolescence reserve 4,891 1,037 (34¢) 6,27¢
Magazine publishing allowance for newsstand returns 4,07¢ 23,47 (22,740 4,80¢
Home video allowance for returns 8,51( 17,66¢ (19,557 6,62:

For the Transition Period Ended December 31, 200

Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 3,74C $ (1579 $ (82) $ 2,084
Inventory obsolescence reserve 3,53¢ 1,42¢ (73 4,891
Magazine publishing allowance for newsstand returns 4512 14,95¢ (15,390 4,07¢
Home video allowance for returns 3,811 14,25 (9,55¢) 8,51(
Advertising underdelivery 36E — (36%) —
For the Year Ended April 30, 2006
Allowance for doubtful accounts $3287 $ 494 $ (41) $ 3,74C
Inventory obsolescence reserve 2,062 1,89¢ (427) 3,53¢
Magazine publishing allowance for newsstand returns 4,60z 20,55¢ (20,465 4,51z
Home video allowance for returns 2,92( 10,19¢ (9,307) 3,817
Advertising underdelivery 2,62¢ 1,59¢ (3,859 36&

(1) Deductions are comprised primarily of disposalsobkolete inventory, writeffs of specific bad debts, returns and additi
advertising spots for underdelivery. When we dodaliver the guaranteed rating, additional adviaigispots, commonly referred
as“make-good!”, or at times, cash refunds, are given to the custc
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SUBSIDIARIES OF WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

(All subsidiaries are wholly-owned, directly or ingettly)
TSI Realty Company (a Delaware corporation)
World Wrestling Entertainment Canada, Inc. (a Céaradorporation)
Stephanie Music Publishing, Inc. (a Connecticupooation)
The World Entertainment, LLC (a Delaware limiteahlility company)*
World Wrestling Entertainment (International) Lieit (a UK corporation)
WWE Sports, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)
Event Services, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)
WWE Studios, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)
- WWE Films Development, Inc. (a Delaware @vgtion)
- WWE Films Development Funding (LA), LLC (a Lowsia limited liability company)
- WWE Films Production (LA), LLC (a Louisiana linei liability company)
- Marine Productions (a California corporation)
- Marine 2 Productions, Inc. (a California corpayaj
- Marine Productions Australia Pty Limited (an Anadia corporation)
- Eye Scream Productions (a California corporation)
- Eye Scream Man Productions Australia Pty Limitad Australia corporation)

- Condemned Productions, Inc. (a California corporg
- Condemned Productions AustralialRtl (an Australia corporation)

WWE Animation, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)

- WWE Animation Development, Inc. (a Delawatgporation)
WWE Libraries, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)
WCW, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)
WWE Properties International, Inc. (a Delaware ooation)

- WWE Japan LLC (a Japanese limited liability comga

- Chinese Representative Office of WWE Propertigsrhational, Inc.

- WWE Brazil Limitada (a Brazil limited liability @ampany)

Exhibit 21.1



- WWE Australia Pty Limited (an Australia lited liability company)

*Not in operation
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CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference inifeggion Statements Nos. 333-92041, 333-923763&34151022 on Form S-8 and No. 333-
72536 on Form $-of our reports dated February 27, 2009, relatinthe consolidated financial statements and firrstatement schedule
World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. and subsidigyiand the effectiveness of World Wrestling Eniarteent, Inc. and subsidiaries intet

control over financial reporting, appearing in tAisnual Report on Form 1R-of World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. and sulisites for th
year ended December 31, 20

/sl Deloitte & Touche LLP
Stamford, Connecticut

February 27, 2009




Exhibit 31.1

Certification required by Securities and Exchange & 1934 Rule 13a-14 as adopted pursuant to@e802 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002:

I, Vincent K. McMahon, certify that:

1.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omistede a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgta under which such statements were made, nteadisg with respect to the per
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, ather financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operat and cash flows of the registrant as of, andtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrang other certifying officers and | are responsitbe éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contansl procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15€)) and internal control over financial repogtifas defined in Exchange Act Rt
13&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedurdse tdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made known tc
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepa

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahporting to be designed un
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurangardang the reliability of financial reporting aritle preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and presémtiis report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls amateuiures, as of the end of the period covered sy réport based on st
evaluation; ant

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsainternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registraat’
most recent fiscal quarter that has materiallycéf@, or is reasonably likely to materially affetbie registrans internal control owvi
financial reporting; an

The registrans other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdd on our most recent evaluation of internal robrtver financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacommittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing the\eden!
function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal controéiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ant

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesmagement or other employees who have a significdeatin the registrant’
internal controls over financial reportir

Dated: February 27, 2009 By: /s/ Vincent K. McMahon

Vincent K. McMahon
Chairman of the Board
(cc-principal executive officer




Exhibit 31.2

Certification required by Securities and Exchange & 1934 Rule 13a-14 as adopted pursuant to@e802 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002:

I, Linda E. McMahon, certify that:

1.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omistede a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgta under which such statements were made, nteadisg with respect to the per
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, ather financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operat and cash flows of the registrant as of, andtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrang other certifying officers and | are responsitbe éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contansl procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15€)) and internal control over financial repogtifas defined in Exchange Act Rt
13&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedurdse tdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made known tc
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepa

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahporting to be designed un
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurangardang the reliability of financial reporting aritle preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and presémtiis report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls amateuiures, as of the end of the period covered sy réport based on st
evaluation; ant

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsainternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registraat’
most recent fiscal quarter that has materiallycéf@, or is reasonably likely to materially affetbie registrans internal control owvi
financial reporting; an

The registrans other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdd on our most recent evaluation of internal robrtver financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacommittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing the\eden!
function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal controéiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ant

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesmagement or other employees who have a significdeatin the registrant’
internal controls over financial reportir

Dated: February 27, 2009 By: /s/ Linda E. McMahon

Linda E. McMahon
Chief Executive Officer
(cc-principal executive officer




Exhibit 31.%

Certification required by Securities and Exchange & 1934 Rule 13a-14 as adopted pursuant to@e802 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002:

I, George A. Barrios, certify that:

1.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omistede a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgta under which such statements were made, nteadisg with respect to the per
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, ather financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operat and cash flows of the registrant as of, andtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrang other certifying officers and | are responsitbe éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contansl procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15€)) and internal control over financial repogtifas defined in Exchange Act Rt
13&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedurdse tdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made known tc
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepa

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahporting to be designed un
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurangardang the reliability of financial reporting aritle preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and presémtiis report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls amateuiures, as of the end of the period covered sy réport based on st
evaluation; ant

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsainternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registraat’
most recent fiscal quarter that has materiallycéf@, or is reasonably likely to materially affetbie registrans internal control owvi
financial reporting; an

The registrans other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdd on our most recent evaluation of internal robrtver financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacommittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing the\eden!
function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal controéiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ant

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesmagement or other employees who have a significdeatin the registrant’
internal controls over financial reportir

Dated: February 27, 2009 By: /s/ George A. Barrios

George A Barrios
Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial officer’




Exhibit 32.1

Certification of Chairman, CEO and CFO Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant tadBe2d6 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the annual report on Form 10fRAorld Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. (the “Compé&hnjor the period ended December
2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cision on the date hereof (the “Repor¥)ncent K. McMahon as Chairman of the Bc
and co-principal executive officer of the Compahinda E. McMahon as Chief Executive Officer andmaicipal executive officer of tt
Company, and George A. Barrios as Chief Financflt€ and principal financial officer, each heretgrtifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sec
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of theaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of hiker knowledge:

(1) The report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934 as amended; a

(2) The information contained in the report fairly prats, in all material aspects, the financial caaditand results of operations of
Company.

By: /s/ Vincent K. McMahon
Vincent K. McMahon
Chairman of the Board
(cc-principal executive officer

February 27, 2009

By: /s/Linda E. McMahon
Linda E. McMahon
Chief Executive Officer
(cc-principal executive officer

February 27, 2009

By: /s/ George A. Barrios
George A. Barrios
Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial officer’

February 27, 2009




